
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF MANITOBA 

Monday, December 18, 1989. 

The House met at 8 p.m. 

CONCURRENT COMMITTEES OF SUPPLY 

SUPPLY-ENERGY AND MINES 

Mr. Chairman (Mr. Harold Gilleshammer): I would  l ike 
to call this meet ing to order to discuss the Est imates 
of the Department of Energy and M ines. When last we 
met we were on item 3. M ineral Resources, (a) M ineral 
Resources Administration: (1) Salaries, $201,000-the 
Member for Fl in Flon. 

Mr. Jerry Storie (Flin Flon): M r. Chairperson ,  my 
co l l eague a n d  I spent  some t i m e  d i scuss i n g  t h e  
LynnGold situation. I wonder i f  the Minister could update 
us on the current offer by the province in support of 
the workers both in  terms of the severance package­
whatever term the M i nister is using-in  support of their 
relocation needs, and also the latest with respect to 
the town's assistance package. 

Hon . Harold Neufeld (Minister of Energy and Mines): 
Deal ing first with the relocation assistance, that is a 
com b ined effort of the  E m p l oyment Services a n d  
Immigration, a n d  t h e  Manitoba Department o f  Labour. 
The assistance is for - I  am not quite sure the formula 
used-up to $7,500 which can be raised up to $10,000 
if it is warranted . 

The assistance to the town, we are committed to 
keeping the essential services go ing .  I believe that the 
M i nister for  Rural Development (Mr. Penner) was there 
on Friday, d iscussed their needs, and delivered a 
cheque, I believe. But things l ike infrastructure, schools 
and hospitals wil l be maintained at the level it is at 
now. In the short future, it will be downsized, I suppose, 
as it  is found necessary, but the assistance to the town 
will be as needed and not in  f lat amounts. They wi l l  
be providing us with requests for  assistance, and it wi l l  
be granted as need is shown. 

Mr. Storie: The Minister mentioned the $7,500 going 
u p  to $10,000.00. Could  the M i nister indicate what 
gu idel ines or criteria are avai lable for people to assess 
what they might be el igible for? 

Mr. Neufeld: El ig ib i l ity is if they are moving ,  of course, 
and it depends where they are moving. Each destination 
has a specific amount attached to it depending on the 
number of people in  the family, depending on the weight 
of the household goods that are transported. I t  is a 
formula that is put out by Employment and Immigration. 
I can get you more detai ls on it ,  but I would have to 
go back to the paper. It is administered for the Manitoba 
Government by the Department of Labour. 

Mr. Storie: So this is the federal Department of 
Employment and Immigration? 

Mr. Neufeld: That is correct. 
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Mr. Storie: How much does the province contribute 
i n  al l  of this? 

Mr. Neufeld: The Minister of Labour has signed an 
agreement with the federal Min ister, and the exact 
details of that agreement I am not certain  of, but 
M anitoba's contribution is approximately 50 percent 
of the total cost of the relocation expenses for each 
employee. 

Mr. Storie: What would the est imated total of the 
relocation costs be to the province? 

Mr. Neufeld: There has been no determination of what 
the total cost wi l l  be. That wi l l  not be determined unti l  
a l l  those who wish to move have moved. 

Mr. Storie: M r. Chairperson ,  I assume that al l  of those 
who are currently miners wi l l  at some point move, 
virtually all of them. Can the M inister give me an 
estimate? 

* (2005) 

Mr. Neufeld: Even if all 200 moved, if they move to 
Thompson, they get one amount If  they move to Flin 
Flon, another; if they move to Saskatoon, another; and 
if they move to Newfoundland, stil l  another. I t  is hard 
to determine even an estimate of what the total cost 
m i g h t  be .  It is n ot be ing  a d m i n istered by o u r  
department; i t  i s  being administered b y  the Department 
of Labour. 

Mr. Storie: M r. Chairperson, the Minister d id not 
reference t h e  severance packages and what t h e  
province might b e  doing in terms o f  any additional 
assistance ,  part icu lar ly in l i gh t  of the bankruptcy 
circumstances of LynnGold. What is the province's latest 
position? 

Mr. Neufeld: The steelworkers asked for, and we have 
ag reed to f u n d ,  a lega l  c h a l lenge as to t h e  
appropriateness o f  their claim .  They are going to first 
of all ask a lawyer whether or not they indeed have a 
claim,  and if they have a claim that might be placed 
ahead of the secured creditors. Secondly, if the lawyer 
th inks that they have a claim,  the decision to challenge 
that in  the courts wil l  be taken. We have agreed to pay 
for the legal cost of that challenge. 

Mr. Jay Cowan (Churchill): W h at wou l d  be t h e  
M inister's course o f  action if it was found that they d id  
not have a claim that could be pursued while bankruptcy 
proceedings were in effect? 

Mr. Neufeld: We wil l  be, of course, at the bankruptcy 
table when meetings are held .  If the question is, would  
the Manitoba Government assist i n  the payment of  
severance pay, the answer would in  al l  probabi l ity be 
no. That would be precedent-setting,  and I do not  th ink 
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we would do that, at least I would not recommend that 
to Cabinet. 

If the question is as has been asked in  the H ouse, 
can we withdraw leases of sister companies, I th ink 
that would  be inappropriate at this point  i n  time, 
although we might consider having our solicitor look 
at that possibi l ity. We have requested legal opin ions 
on a number of matters, and those legal opin ions have 
not been received. I might say that those include, among 
others, whether or not a bankruptcy voids leases, and 
things along those l ines. We have not yet received the 
legal opinion.  

Mr. Cowan: I go back to the original question though. 
Obviously the M i nister said that he would  be prepared 
to finance the court case for severance by the union.  
That would  most l ikely, if it were to proceed , have an 
effect on others as wel l-non-union ized employees. I 
bel ieve they have done so because they believe that 
severance is owing to the workers, or they would not 
have financed the court case. What if it is not possible 
for the union, or anyone, to br ing a court case forward 
for severance pay at a time the bankruptcy proceedings 
are in  place? 

The M inister has ind icated, by the very action, that 
they th ink there is some unfairness there, otherwise 
they would not f inance the workers to seek fairness in  
the  courts. Yet it may be i mpossible by law for  them 
to do so. What would  be the fall-back position of the 
Government in  that instance? Would they then just say, 
wel l ,  that is the way it is,  and abandon the workers i n  
that respect? Or would they try to f i n d  some other way 
to help them obtain that severance pay? 

Mr. Neufeld: There is no q uestion in our mind that 
legally the workers are entitled to that severance pay. 
That is with in  their negotiated contract . If the courts 
indeed decide they will not hear the case, or i f  the 
lawyers decide it  is not a case worth taking to the 
courts, our position would  be to look at other areas 
where we might be able to encourage the company to 
make some payment. I would have a great deal of doubt 
as to whether or not we could succeed.  

Mr. Cowan: What might those other areas be? 

Mr. Neufeld: What  areas do we h ave? We can 
encourage them, we can s it  at  the table,  and if indeed 
we can void the leases, that might be of some help, 
but I think that to g ive a definitive answer to that 
question now is a l ittle premature. We would have to 
wait and see what happens. We have not had the fi rst 
cred itors' meet ing as yet, so in all fai rness we should 
wait unt i l  that meeting is held and see what the position 
of each and every one of the creditors is.  

* (20 10)  

Mr. Cowan: Let me te l l  the Min ister why I believe that 
is not a premature decision at this point in t ime. As 
he is aware, the union has asked for legal opin ions 
w i t h  respect t o  whether  or n ot t hey can sue for  
bankruptcy, and the Min ister had been encouraging 
them do so.  The legal  opinion they have received very 

clearly states that they cannot sue for severance while 
t h e  company  i s  in t he m i d st of the b a n k ruptcy 
proceedings. 

Section 69( 1 )  of the bankruptcy Act provides quote: 
"On the fi l ing of a proposal made by an insolvent person 
or upon the bankruptcy of any debtor, no creditor with 
a claim provable in  bankruptcy shall have any remedy 
against the debtor or his property or shall commence 
or continue any action, execution or other proceedings 
for the recovery of a claim provable in bankruptcy unti l  
the trustee has been d ischarged or unti l  the proposal 
has been refused, unless with the leave of the court 
and at such terms as the court may impose." 

That is a quote from the Act , and the interpretation 
is and I quote: "That means that the union or individual 
steelworker members as creditors cannot start a lawsuit 
against LynnGold Resources for wages, severance pay 
or vacation pay, all being claims which are provable in  
b a n k r u ptcy, without f i rst o bta i n i n g  l eave o f  the 
bankruptcy court. 

The Manitoba Court of Appeal has said that in  order 
for leave to be granted the creditor must demonstrate 
to the court that there exist compelling reasons to 
permit an action to commence. I n  another decision,  
the Court of  Appeal emphasizes that the fundamental 
idea of the legislation is that al l  claims against the 
bank rupt be dealt with w i th in  the context of the 
bankruptcy proceedings. 

Leave to commence proceed ings is only granted 
where there are highly unusual c ircumstances such as 
a fraud committed by the bankrupt. Where the claim 
is a claim payable in  bankruptcies, such as an action 
for recovery of severance pay, wages and vacation pay, 
it is h ighly un l ikely that leave wil l  be granted , and even 
if  i t  is, once you have your judgment against the 
c o m p a n y  you cannot  take n o r m a l  c iv i l  l i t i gat ion  
remedies to  col lect on the  judgment. You are left to  
share the  pot with the  other unsecured creditors which 
would not put you in  any better position than you are 
currently i n . "  The "you" in that sentence is of course 
t h e  steelwo rkers a n d  the  i n d iv idua l  members . ­
( interjection)-

Of course, they get their 500 and then they get their 
1 ,200, but the point is the remedy which the M inister 
has held out to the steelworkers as a way to resolve 
their problem and the remedy behind which he has put 
Government money is a false start. It goes nowhere, 
it cannot be done. So the question is not premature. 
The question is a very legit imate one, and that is why 
I ask what other options. 

You would think that the Min ister would understand ,  
or a t  least h is staff would tell h im that this option which 
he was putt ing forward is a no-go right from the very 
beginn ing,  and it does not take a bri l l iant legal mind 
to f igure that  out .  It just takes some research of the 
bankruptcy Act and some research of the cases that 
have been put forward and decided upon by the Court 
of Appeal here in  Manitoba and elsewhere. 

The fact is he has created expectations and raised 
false hopes, and they are not going to lead anywhere. 
N ow what is he going to do? What are those other 
options? 
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Mr. Neufeld: Let us not leave on the record that I held 
out any hopes at al l  to the steelworkers. The request 
came from t h e  steelworkers whether  or n ot t h e  
Govern ment would  b e  prepared to f inance a request 
from the courts. The Government said they would  
finance that request. 

That is the on ly thing we have discussed with the 
steelworkers. We have never d iscussed whether or not 
there was any possibi l ity or probabil ity of success in 
that action. We have not held out any hopes for the 
steelworkers. I f  at a l l ,  we have probably indicated to 
them that we do not know of a precedent on th is, but 
we are sti l l  prepared to exhaust every avenue with them 
if this is their wish. The only th ing we have said is that 
we wi l l  f inance this action. 

As far as what other action we can take, I think the 
Member for Church i l l  (Mr. Cowan) indicates correctly 
that no action can be taken against the bankrupt except 
as permitted under the bankruptcy Act. Where d oes 
he expect us to go from here? We wi l l  do whatever we 
can to help the steelworkers, but we are very l imited 
in  what there is that we might do. 

* (20 1 5) 

Mr. Cowan: Let me read from the most recent edit ion 
of The Thompson Citizen what the M inister is quoted 
as saying there, and he can take offence with the quote 
if he wishes. The paragraph starts out: "The Manitoba 
Government wil l  help employees of LynnGold Resources 
I nc., which is file for bankruptcy, fight in courts for 
severance pay, Energy Min ister Harold Neufeld said 
Tuesday. Neufeld said that the Government would  pay 
t h e  lega l  costs of  a court act i o n  by the  U n i ted 
Steelworkers of  America. The case would seek to h ave 
employees' severance benefits g iven pr ior ity over 
secured creditors i n  bankruptcy proceedings." 

Now here is a quote from the M inister: "A lawyer 
is working on it , " Neufeld said. "There apparently is 
some precedent for it." 

The narrative of the story says the M inister said the 
proposed severance package would amount to $2.2 
mi l l ion and pay workers an average of $ 1 4,000 each. 

In the paper he is saying that there is apparently 
some precedent for it ,  and today he is saying there is 
no  precedent for it ,  if I heard h im correctly. The very 
statement that he said-"A lawyer is working on it. 
There is apparently some precedent for it" - I  would 
suggest would  give to the normal reader of that quote 
some sense of opt imism or hope. Now if the M inister 
d i d  not mean to say it that way, that is just one more 
example of when he misspoke h imself or he got th ings 
m ixed up or he got them wrong. M aybe he is misquoted, 
I do not know. That may be the case as wel l. That 
happens from time to time, but that is the only document 
that many of the people in  the community have to read 
for any analysis of what the Minister has offered to 
them as help. 

I would suggest that by his actions here, by that 
statement, he has g iven opt imism where very clearly 
there is very l ittle room for optimism, very little reason 
or cause for hope. I think that is just another d isservice 
to the employees. 

With that the case, notwithstanding that, what other 
options which he said they would be prepared to take 
a look at if the court case on severance did n ot proceed 
are they prepared to look at? Or has he g iven any 
thought to this at al l ,  to a point where he can come 
up with some answers? 

Mr. Neufeld: I think that first of all a lawyer was engaged 
by the steelworkers to look into this-

Mr. Cowan: And the precedent. 

Mr. Neufeld: -and we are paying for that solicitor. 
As far as a precedent is concerned , the steelworkers 
at one point suggested to us that there was a precedent. 
I am not aware where that precedent is, but the 
steelworkers have suggested to us that they were i n  
i t  for that reason, that they asked u s  t o  assist them i n  
the action. A s  far a s  taking a n  action against a bankrupt, 
the answer is very clear, and the Member for Churchi l l  
( M r. Cowan) has  already ind icated there is very l ittle 
action one can take against one who is bankrupt. What 
more can one do to a bankrupt's estate? You stand 
in l ine with the creditors as defined by the bankruptcy 
Act, and if you cannot get the courts to put you ahead 
of the other creditors you stand in l ine. There is nothing 
more that can be done. 

Mr. Cowan: So then why encourage a court case i n  
t h e  first instance? 

The other issue-there are lots of issues but one of 
the other issues is the vacation pay. The M i nister of 
Labour the other day said in the H ouse that the 
Government is going to vigorously pursue the d i rectors 
for that vacation pay. Can the M i nister indicate what 
action has been taken in  that regard to date and what 
action is anticipated to be taken and when? 

Mr. Neufeld: First of all, the Member for Churchill (Mr. 
Cowan)  started off h i s  comments  by sayi n g  why 
encourage a court case. We d id  not encourage it .  We 
simply told the steelworkers we would assist i n  it ;  we 
would pay the legal fees for it. I do not see why he 
keeps on putting on the record that we have encouraged 
it. We have never encouraged it. 

* (2020) 

As far as the vacat i o n  p ay for t h e  workers is 
concerned, the Minister of Labour h as indicated, I 
believe, that the first $ 1 ,200 wil l  be paid by the provincial 
Government. The provincial Government wi l l  then take 
the workers' p lace in  line in  the bankruptcy. They 
presumably get $500 back from the bankruptcy estate. 

As far as the other $700 are concerned, if there is 
i ndeed a case against the d irectors, I presume the 
Minister of Labour would take an action against the 
d irectors for that other $700.00. I suppose that the 
steelworkers and the other employees would take an 
action against the d i rectors for the monies they have 
coming to them for vacation pay. 

Mr. Cowan: I believe the law, and I looked and my 
learned col league across the table from me states that 
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vacation pays are due in fu l l .  We are not deal ing with 
the $ 1 ,200 l im it with respect to vacation pay. We are 
referr ing  to the d i rectors be ing  l i a b l e  under  The 
Employment Standards Act for the full amount of the 
vacation pay -(interjection)- Payment of Wages Act, 
and I appreciate his assistance. The fact is that the 
d irectors are l iable for the full amount, if I understand 
the Act correctly. Is  that not the case? 

Mr. Neufeld: We have the legal opinion that the 
d irectors wi l l  be l iable for the vacation pay. 

Mr. Cowan: That is the total amount for the vacation 
pay even if it exceeds $ 1 ,200.00. Is  that not the case? 

Mr. Neufeld: I have never suggested any other th ing.  
I have said that ,  if the Manitoba Government pays the 
$ 1 , 20 0 ,  t hey w i l l  g o  afte r  t h at $ 1 ,200  and the 
steelworkers wi l l  go after the rest. I t  may be a jo int  
act ion,  but the total vacation pay woul d  be paid if they 
indeed are the l iabi l ity of the d irectors. 

Mr. Cowan: I believe the G overn ment would have a 
responsib i l ity to go after that ful l  amount because it 
is provincial legislation that has been violated . The 
Min ister of Labour (Mrs. Hammond) h as said that she 
will vigorously pursue that. I am asking the M i nister: 
what action is going to be taken and when , because 

. i t  is an extremely i mportant q uestion? 

I was in  Lynn  Lake this weekend .  People are start ing 
to leave that community. Some of those ind ividuals are 
owed thousands of dol lars, and in some instances 
approaching $ 10,000 for vacation pay and severance 
on top of that. If the M inister says they cannot do 
anything about the severance, at least- I  am not certain 
that the Government should take that posit ion. I th ink 
there are a number of th ings they can do. They may 
not be legal options in all instances but they are 
avai lable to the Government. What is it going to do,  
i f  it is not going to do anyth ing about severance, to 
ensure that the vacation pays are collected qu ickly so 
that they can be d istributed to the workers to whom 
they are owing? 

Mr. Neufeld: I am not a lawyer and I do not know what 
the lawyers' advice will be, but I th ink that the lawyers 
for both the steelworkers and the Manitoba Government 
wil l  be pursuing, I am told , the d irectors for the vacation 
pay. How fast that can be done is up to the solicitors 
and up to the courts. The Min ister cannot speed up 
that process. 

Mr. Cowan: I am asking what action is the M in ister 
taking to ensure that the process unfolds as qu ickly 
as is possible. Has he encouraged the Minister of Labour 
(Mrs. Hammond) to bring the charges or the action 
qu ickly? Has he encouraged the Min ister to set up the 
board of arbitration which, I believe, would be the 
appropriate authority for deal ing with this particular 
matter under the labour relations procedures in  the 
province? That tr ibunal most l ikely woul d  be struck on 
the Labour Relations Board , which is something that 
the M i nister can provide some in it iat ive in .  Has he or 
she, the M inister of Labour, done those things and,  if 
not, when are they going to d o  them? 

Mr. Neufeld: The action wi l l  be a civi l action and it 
has to be brought, I would th ink,  by those who have 
the money coming.  I am sure that they have already 
engaged a solicitor to look at this. I know the Manitoba 
Government has engaged a solicitor to look at it. 

* (2025) 

Mr. Cowan: Let m e  t e l l  the M i n ister  what  my 
understand ing of it is then , and perhaps he can prove 
me wrong. The recovery of vacation pay is properly 
made before the Labour Relations Board of Manitoba, 
sitt ing in  its capacity as a tribunal which determines 
vacations with pay and employment standards matters. 
This avenue is already being pursued by the Department 
of Employment Standards. 

Is the Minister sti l l  saying that this wi l l  be a civi l  
action and this course, which already appears to have 
been i n it i ated by the Department of E m p l oyment 
Standards, wi l l  not  be followed? 

Mr. Neufeld: I am not a lawyer and I am not going to 
pretend to know what legal course has to be taken. I 
leave that to the solicitors who have been engaged. 

Mr. Cowan: Just one last point and then I wi l l  yield 
the floor to the Member for St. James (Mr. Edwards), 
and we may come back to this fol lowing that . 

The Min ister is not a lawyer, but the M inister has 
staff avai lable to h im.  He has access to legal counsel , 
greater access to legal counsel than anyone else i n  
this room most l ikely or to different numbers o f  legal 
counsel . 

I w o u l d  t h i n k  t hat i f  he g e n u i ne ly  cared about  
recovering these wages qu ickly and  seeing that the 
wage earners had coming to them what is owed them, 
then he would take the t ime to find out how the matter 
is pursued . He would  take the time to find out if there 
were any barriers in the way of pursuing the matter 
or, if his colleagues are not moving along quickly enough 
or if there are ways that the process might be expedited , 
he would make h imself aware of this situation - I  hope 
that is not too much to ask for-and then take the 
appropr iate act ion  by g iv ing  the d i rect ion  t h at is 
required to protect the workers in  this instance. 

His answers to date have been totally unsatisfactory 
in that regard , but that is what we have become used 
to with respect to this particular Minister. 

Mr. Neufeld: I do not know how many t imes I have to 
tell the Member for Churchi l l  that the Department of 
Labour has engaged legal counsel to do the very th ing 
that he suggests we should be doing. I do not know 
how many t imes we have to tell h im and I wi l l  tell h im 
again ,  legal counsel has  been engaged and the  process 
is moving as it should. 

Mr. Paul Edwards (St. James): One of the interesting 
aspects which I raised i n  the House earlier this week 
and which the Minister of Labour and the Min ister here 
today did not respond to specifically in the House but 
did in the hal lway afterwards was the abi l ity to claim 
u nder The Payment of Wages Act for severance pay. 
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By that, I mean go to the d irectors themselves for 
severance pay. 

The Payment of Wages Act defines wages and it is 
very clear that vacation pay is i ncluded . You can go 
after these d i rectors. Having spoken with the d i rectors, 
i n  particular Bob Buchan, he has informed me that the 
d irectors are insured by a m ajor insurance company. 
He would not g ive me the exact name of the company. 
He sa id  it was a reco g n ized insurance company, 
presumably with many t imes sufficient assets to cover 
the severance pay, in  this case some $2.3 mi l l ion .  

On my reading of  The Payment of Wages Act ,  whi le 
it is not common in  th is province for the d irector of 
Employment Standards to pursue severance pay under 
that Act as a form of wages in  trying to collect from 
the d irectors, that is something which this Min ister has 
not addressed here tonight as an option. Presumably 
from his responses, the lawyers or lawyer engaged by 
the department is not looking at that .  Can the Min ister 
tell the Members here tonight whether or not that 
avenue has been pursued? Quite frankly, whi le it is a 
novel argument, one that would no doubt potential ly 
be lost, it is certainly one with some hope which, as 
my fr iend ,  the  Mem ber for  Church i l l  ( M r. Cowan) 
indicates, is not the case with respect to the bankruptcy 
Act, at least not so much as the case if i t  were pursued 
under The Payment of Wages Act Has that avenue 
been pursued? 

Mr. Neufeld: We are deal ing with an area that is the 
purview of the Minister of Labour (Mrs. H ammond).  If 
it has not been pursued, and if there is a possib i l ity 
that some action can be taken under that Act, then I 
wi l l  talk to the Min ister of Labour tomorrow and ask 
her if that has been done and, i f  i t  has not been done, 
that she ask her solicitor. 

* (2030) 

Mr. Edwards: I thank the M i nister for u ndertaking to 
look into that avenue. I truly believe that it is one with 
some hope or I would  not suggest it. 

The fact that 220 m iners were left h igh and d ry after 
negot iat ing a collective agreement which qu ite clearly 
gave them certain severance pay rights and incurred 
obligations on the corporation ,  left h igh and d ry by the 
Dynamic Capital Corporation with some $500 mi l l ion 
in  assets absolutely incenses me, I bel ieve, and I th ink 
al l  Manitobans believe, that something is desperately 
wrong when that is al lowed to occur. On top of the 
great loss of equity in  homes in Lynn  Lake and the loss 
to the community when people are going to have to 
leave their homes which they want to l ive in ,  on top 
of that, they are stripped of what is a negot iated right 
under a collective agreement to severance pay. 

It just goes beyond belief, and I think that really strikes 
at the heart of what the Mem ber for Churchi l l  (Mr. 
Cowan) and indeed al l  Members of the H ouse, or at 
least the Opposition, are talk ing about when they raise 
this issue with such fervour  and such regu larity. I put 
those comments on the record for the Min ister simply 
by way of explanation about our Party's sheer rage 
over what has happened in Lyn n  Lake. 

I want to ask the Minister specifically whether or not 
he will be present on January 4 at the offices of Touche 
Ross as a creditor to the company at the fi rst meeting 
of creditors. I bel ieve M r. Douglas is the solicitor. He 
was the one who has informed me that the meeting is 
January 4. I may be incorrect on the exact date. Will 
the Min ister be present, i n  that the Government is in 
fact an unsecured creditor to the amount of some $2 
mi l l ion.  

Mr. Neufeld: Whether or not I wil l  be present personally, 
I am not yet sure, but the Government wi l l  be wel l  
represented. There are a number of  departments that 
h ave m o n ies c o m i n g  i n c l u d i n g  Fi n ance,  the 
Development Corporat ion ,  Workers Compensat ion ,  
among others, and I can assure the Member for  St. 
J ames (Mr. Edwards) that the Government will be wel l  
represented. 

Mr. Edwards: Can the M inister indicate who is paying 
the trustee's fees? 

Mr. Neufeld: It is my understanding that the trustee's 
fees are paid out of the estate of the bankrupt. 

Mr. Edwards: As the M inister knows, there are some 
$ 1 7  mi l l ion in secured creditors and roughly $ 1 6  mi l l ion 
in assets. It is my understanding that i n  particular upon 
reviewing the bankruptcy proposal ,  trustee's fees are 
preferred. However, they do not gain the priority of a 
secured creditor. Therefore, it is my understanding that 
i t  i s  norma l  i n  t h ese s i tuat ions  that  someone,  
presumably one of  the people who ranks early on as 
a secured creditor, d oes undertake to cover the trustee 
i n  b a n k ruptcy' s fees. Oth erwise,  t rust ees i n  
bankruptcies d o  not take o n  cases i n  which the assets 
do not cover the secured creditors. I know that the 
M i n i ster, w i th  h i s  exper ience and expert ise as a 
chartered accountant, would know probably a lot more 
about that than I do, but I leave those comments with 
him and ask him again ,  has he any idea who the trustee's 
fees are being secured by? 

Mr. Neufeld: U n d e r  n o r m a l  c i rcumstances,  t h e  
petitioner w i ll  guarantee t h e  trustee's fees, but I do 
believe the trustee's fees are pa id  out  of  the estate, 
and they come fi rst This is my u nderstanding,  and I 
have never worked in bankruptcy. 

Mr. Edwards: Certain ly the petit ioner generally does. 
T h i s  was a vo l u ntary b a n k r u ptcy, a vo luntary 
assignment, so there is not a petitioner. Wi l l  the Minister 
undertake to have his officials who attend the first 
meeting make that inquiry and report back to the House, 
because I th ink i t  is relevant to know which creditor 
is funding the trustee's fees in  this particular bankruptcy, 
which is of so much publ ic interest in th is province? 

Mr. Neufeld: I have no objection to lett ing the Member 
know who is guaranteeing the fee. 

Mr. Edwards: The Min ister, in response to a question 
from the Member for Churchi l l  ( M r. Cowan), said what 
can you do to a bankrupt estate? In large measure, 
that comment typifies some of the despondency and 
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despair that must be felt i n  Lynn  Lake and i ndeed is 
felt a l l  over this province. 

The fact is that this company went bankrupt on 
October 27 of this year. On October 26, the day before, 
the superintendent was quoted in the Winn ipeg Free 
Press as saying that the company had every i ntention 
of paying  severance pay. Therefore, the workers were 
led to bel ieve by publ ic pronouncement that their 
severance pay would be paid. 

On the other hand ,  the M i nister in  negotiations with 
the company for some months before that knew that 
the company had absolutely no cash assets. They had 
some $30,000 in cash at the time of f i l ing.  They also 
had some $ 1 6  mi l l ion in  assets with $ 1 7  mi l l ion i n  
secured creditors. It was patently obvious t o  anyone 
who looked at the balance sheet, as the M inister had 
been provided with, that this company had absolutely 
no i ntention of paying  that severance pay, which they 
had negot iated some t i m e  before i n  a c o l lect ive 
agreement. Why d id the Minister not raise that concern 
with the d irectors at any time prior to the f i l ing of 
bankruptcy on October 27? 

Mr. Neufeld: I cannot believe that question. I cannot 
believe the Member for St. J ames (Mr. Edwards) would 
ask a question of why we did not insist that the company 
pay the severance pay. We did insist. It was one of our 
cond it ions. I cannot believe he would ask a q uestion 
because, once a company is on the verge of bankruptcy, 
are you going to tel l them to pay another $2.5 mi l l ion 
or e lse we wil l  let  them go bankrupt? What can you 
do to a company that is about to file bankruptcy? You 
cannot do any more to it .  You cannot do any more 
than k i l l  somebody. That is the ult imate. 

T h e  company was asked to m a k e  cert a i n  
commitments i f  w e  were to make certain commitments. 
One of those commitments was clearly that they were 
to pay all the debts of the company and one of those 
debts was the severance pay. That was a condit ion 
from the outset back in  July, a cond it ion that we placed 
upon the company, and I have mentioned this to the 
Member for St. James (Mr. Edwards) a number of t imes. 
If he cannot understand it, what m ore can I say? We 
put the condit ion to the company that they make a 
commitment to pay al l  the debts of the company 
including the severance pay if we were to put our money 
up.  

Mr. Edwards: The Min ister, I take it ,  is referring 
specifically to the letter that was tabled in  the House 
I bel ieve, November 2 .  Perhaps I may be m ixed up with 
my dates, but I bel ieve it was N ovem ber 2, in any event, 
a number of d ays after the voluntary assignment i nto 
bankruptcy was filed, being  October 27. Is that the 
letter he is referring to as requ i ring that assurance that 
severance pay would be put forward by the company? 

Mr. Neufeld: On October 4 ,  one of our condit ions was 
to remove al l  outstanding debts of the company. 

Mr. Edwards: Is the Minister saying that as of October 
4 the severance pay in  his view qual ified as outstanding 
debt? 

Mr. Neufeld: There is official ly and legally no debt for 
severance pay until the layoff is complete and that was 
on Novem ber 6, but on October 30-wel l ,  severance 
pay was brought  up in n u merous conversat i o n s .  
Official ly, t h e  debt is n o t  there unti l  such a t i m e  as 
layoff is complete, and October 30, in contemplation 
of that layoff being complete a week hence, we put 
that specifical ly on the table. 

Mr. Edwards: The M inister says severance pay was 
raised on many occas ions .  What was sa id  about  
severance p ay o n  t h o se many occas i o n s ?  I a m  
particularly interested in  what was said prior to October 
27.  

* (2040) 

Mr. Neufeld: The q uestion was often raised of what 
would happen. The fact of the matter is, f irst of a l l ,  i f  
the company keeps operating there is no  severance 
pay l iabi l ity. Our d iscussions with them were primarily 
to keep that company operat ing.  It appeared early in 
October that they had no i ntention of keeping this 
company operat ing.  At that t ime severance pay came 
into the question and they told us that they would try 
to make a deal with the employees to take shares in  
l ieu  of  severance pay. They to ld  us they would make 
a deal with the employees to take shares in l ieu of 
vacation pay. They told us they would make a deal with 
all the other creditors to take shares in lieu of the debt 
owing.  These were al l  conditions that they were going 
to meet, conditions they never have met. The severance 
pay was to be looked after by way of shares. 

Mr. E�wards: Did the M i nister ever ask the company, 
as a sign of good faith in these negotiations in which 
the province was not going to put up any small sum 
of money-by their own statements repeatedly, $24 
mi l l ion apparently was on the table from the province­
did the M inister ever ask M r. Buchan, as a sign of his 
good faith in  respect to these negotiations, to set aside 
�onies then and there to cover the severance pay, 
given they had clearly no intention and no money in  
the company to pay the roughly $2.3 mi l l ion in  severance 
pay? Why was that statement not made to M r. Buchan, 
and why was he not confronted early on with the fact 
that he was out to shaft the workers from Day One? 

Mr. Neufeld: It is strange that both Parties are now 
so sol idly against the company when just a month ago 
they were standing with the company and tel l ing us to 
make a deal with the company. I ask the Member for 
St. James, how do you ask somebody to put up more 
money when he has said that he is not going to put 
up any more money? He is on the verge of bankruptcy 
and you say to h im,  in good faith,  put up $2.5 mi l l ion.  
That is nonsense. 

Mr. Edwards: The Minister was offering some $24 
mi l l ion.  Clearly the company had no intention of paying 
the severance pay. We did not know that. The balance 
sheet for that company was not in  the hands, at least, 
of myself. 

Mr. Neufeld: You could have obtained it any time you 
wanted to from any broker. It is a public stock company. 
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You could have obtained the balance sheet and the 
financial statements any time you wanted from the same 
source that we received it from. 

Mr. Edwards: Is  the M inister saying that he was 
aware- maybe he can answer th is. When exactly d id 
he become aware that the company had $30,000 in  
cash? 

Mr. Neufeld: I have seen their balance sheets for the 
last couple of years. I have known for some t ime the 
financial position of the company, since I took office 
a year and a half ago. 

Mr. Edwards: I n  the conversations, when the company 
was sti l l  deal ing with the province, did the Min ister ever 
ask M r. Buchan, and I wi l l  repeat this, d id the Minister 
ever ask the company or M r. Buchan what specifically 
his intentions were with respect to an agreement 
negotiated some time before a collective agreement 
with the workers of Lyn n  L ake? 

Mr. Neufeld: Official ly we k new nothing about that 
agreement. We did know about it from the steelworkers. 
The agreement was negotiated by Sherritt Gordon 
M ines many years ago. I t  was taken over by SherrGold 
and subsequently taken over by LynnGold. They have 
assu med an agreement  t h at somebody e l se h a d  
negotiated. That takes nothing away from t h e  fact that 
the l iabi l ity is there in the event of layoff, and layoff 
had not occurred , layoff was to occur. We were afraid 
right from the start that layoff and bankruptcy both 
would occur and employees would  not get their money. 

We could see their balance sheet, we knew the 
d i rection the company was taking. That was easily 
understood by us, but what do you do at this point i n  
t ime? You cannot  s a y  t o  somebody w h o  i s  
contemplating bankruptcy, put up another $2.5 mi l l ion 
or we wi l l  not give you 24. I f  we do not give them 24 
they are i n  bankruptcy anyway. I f  we ask them to put 
u p  another two and a half they simply fi le bankruptcy, 
which they i n  fact d id .  One of the reasons they fi led 
was because of our insistance that they commit $2.5 
mi l l ion,  or whatever the severance pay was, to a trust 
account. That was a condit ion on the October 30 letter 
in contemplation of the layoff date, Novem ber 6. 

Mr. Edwards: That letter was sent October 30, that 
was three d ays after the voluntary assignment into 
bankruptcy. Why was that demand not made prior to 
October 30? 

Mr. Neufeld: Because prior to October 30 we were 
dealing with them in good faith in keeping the operations 
going.  We were deal ing i n  good faith; they may not 
h ave been and you can -there is no question in our 
mind that we thought that we were deal ing i n  good 
faith and the company was deal ing in  good faith.  They 
m ay not have been, but if you are going to negotiate 
the cont inu ing operation you do not have a layoff, and 
i f  you do not have a layoff you do not have l iabi l ity. 
Which way do you want? Do you want to negotiate the 
layoff or do you want to negotiate the continuing 
operation? You have to make up your mind,  you cannot 
h ave it both ways. Even you should know that. 

Mr. Edwards: Mr. Chairman, the Min ister has said that 
he knew-and the record wil l  show this earlier on this 
evening-as of early October that the company had 
no intention of going through with this and of taking 
a-

***** 

Mr. Chairman: On a point of order, the Honourable 
M inister of Health. 

Hon . Donald Orchard (Minister of Health): I real ize 
my honourable friend for St. James is a lawyer, and 
because of h is substantive duties as an M LA he often 
maybe does not get in court any more. But this is not 
a court, M r. Chairman -about what d id  you say, and 
what your impression was, and what did you do with 
this, and then what word did you say, and were you 
aware, and al l  of the court-quizzing. 

If my honourable friend ,  the lawyer from St. James, 
wants to practise lawyer, go to a court. 

Mr. Chairman: There is no point of order. 

***** 

Mr. Edwards: Perhaps the Min ister of Health does not 
want to get to the bottom of what happened, which 
resulted in 220 workers in  Lynn  Lake being not only 
without severance pay, without equity i n  their homes, 
and without anything,  relatively speaking,  i n  terms of 
an abi l ity to l ive in the place that they have chosen, 
and the homes that they have made in a community 
i n  northern Manitoba. Perhaps he is not keen to get 
to  the bottom of that. I am. The fact is that th is M inister, 
h is  col league, d id  not do all that was necessary and 
all that was called on by him in  these negotiations, and 
he basically got hammered by this company. I want to 
get to the bottom of it so that he and al l  h is col leagues 
in the Government wi l l  know, and perhaps learn from 
his mistakes. 

An Honourable Member: If we gave you time off you 
could go back to court i f  you want. 

Mr. Edwards: With respect to the-the M inister says 
he can g ive me t ime to go back to court. The M inister 
may be interested to know that I was there today, and 
I wi l l  be there tomorrow, and I wi l l  be there Thursday, 
and I certainly get enough time i n  court that-

An Honourable Member: You mean you are double­
t iming it? You are not a ful l-time M LA? 

Mr. Chairman: Order, please; order, p lease. 

Mr. Edwards: I have lots of t ime to practise my 
profession. The Min ister said earlier in this discussion 
this evening that early in October, he knew the company 
was not going to go through with the deal and that 
they were intending on bankruptcy and on laying off. 
He then went on to say that he came to the conclusion 
that he should force this issue with the company on 
October 30. So at the beginning of the month he knows 
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that LynnGold has no intention of going through with 
this, but he does not force the issue of severance pay 
unt i l  the end of the month ,  unt i l  October 30. That is 
three days after the bankruptcy. 

Why d id  he not take the i n it iative that he saw better 
of taking later on in the month? Why did he not take 
i t  when he k new the company had no i ntention of going 
through with this and had every i ntention of laying off 
workers without severance pay? 

Mr. Neufeld: First of al l ,  the Member for St. James 
said I got hammered by the company. I would l ike h im 
to  explain to me where I got hammered by  the  company 
and then I will answer his other question. 

Mr. Edwards: The M inister got hammered by the 
company because a major industrial ist has pul led out 
of here leaving 220 Manitobans without severance pay 
and having absolutely no responsib i l ity in  this province. 
The M inister does not even k now the remedies available 
to h im.  He d oes not even k now that the d irector of 
E m p l oyment  Stand ards can  l a u n c h  an act i o n  
independently and does not need to launch a civil action, 
as he suggests. 

* (2050) 

He is total ly out of touch with what is going on i n  
this case; he has been for months. T h e  fact i s ,  the 
workers are paying the price and yes, he got hammered. 
He got hammered by Dynamic Capital Corporation out 
of Toronto and by Bob Buchan al l  the way down the 
l i ne. He k nows in  early October that they were not 
going to go through with it. He waits an entire month 
after they have filed bankruptcy and, he knows what 
bankruptcy causes, he waits a whole month to force 
the issue of severance pay. Why? 

Mr. Neufeld: Wel l ,  I have said a l ittle while ago that 
when you are negotiating the continuing operations you 
do not negotiate layoff. When you negotiate layoff and 
bankruptcy you do not negot iate continuing operation. 
You cannot d o  both.  You have to make up your mind 
which one you want .  We decided that we were going 
to negotiate cont inuing operations. We went to the end 
to negotiate cont inuing operations, even to the point 
of our letter on November 9 ,  I believe it was, i n  which 
we final ly demanded that the company take a position 
and make their commitment to this province. We have, 
from the start, negotiated continu ing operations, and 
when you are doing that, you cannot ask the company 
to put up monies for which they may not have a l iabi l ity, 
indeed for which they would not have a l iabi l i ty. 

As far as the comments you have made about what 
the M in ister of Labour should or might do, I have said 
from the start, I am not a lawyer. I do not pretend to 
be a lawyer. I leave that to sol icitors. Whatever action 
they wish to take, they wi l l  take. The company has not 
hammered this Government. We have negotiated with 
this company, and we have made demands that they 
make commitments, and if that is being hammered , so 
be it.  

Mr. Edwards: You made a demand that they make a 
commitment with respect to severance pay three days 

too late. You said that you were negotiating to keep 
the company open, to keep the operation going. You 
were negotiating with that in mind,  and that was what 
possessed you, and that was why you d id  not force 
th is issue. The fact is, you said about 20 minutes ago 
that you knew early in  October operations were not 
going to continue. You knew this company was not 
negotiat ing in good faith. Why did you not do anything 
then? 

Mr. Neufeld: First of al l ,  the company on October 27 
put,  I th ink they call it a holding proposal,  so that the 
bankruptcy wil l  not be final until that proposal is heard-

An Honourable Member: Retroactive to that date. 

Mr. Chairman: Order, please. 

Mr. Neufeld: M r. Chairman , it is retroactive to that 
d ate if the company decides to go through with the 
bankruptcy, but if the proposal meets agreement of its 
creditors, the bankruptcy wi l l  not go forward. The 
hold ing proposal i n  effect holds at bay al l  the creditors 
unt i l  such a time as the company has made a proposal 
known. If the creditors agree to it ,  the bankruptcy wi l l  
n o t  proceed; if t h e  creditors do not agree t o  i t ,  the 
bankruptcy proceeds retroactive to the date of October 
27.  

At the same t ime,  the employees were not laid off 
unt i l  Novem ber 6, and it was not unti l  layoff that the 
severance pay became a l iabi l ity to the company. If we 
are going to negotiate the bankruptcy, that is one th ing.  
I th ink then we could be blamed. We did not negotiate 
the bankruptcy. We negotiated the continuing operation. 
That was our demand of the company from Day One, 
that the operations be continuing and it not be a band­
a i d  so lut i o n .  We wanted the c o n t i nued m i n i ng 
operations in Lynn Lake and not just a temporary one. 
That was our demand from the start .  We demanded 
t h at t h e  c o m pany make its comm itment  to  t he 
community as wel l .  The company was not prepared to 
make that commitment and filed bankruptcy. That is 
not our decision. 

Mr. Edwards: Wel l ,  these demands that the Min ister 
speaks so fervently about sure went a long way. Good 
work. The fact is, 220 people have not received a d ime 
out of that company except, by virtue of the bankruptcy 
Act, $500.00. This Government is going to end up paying 
$700 per worker. The fact is, those people got off scot­
free. The M inister d id a fine job, given that he k new 
a month before he forced the issue of severance pay 
that the company was going down and had no intention 
of paying it .  That is called being a sucker. 

M r. Chairman, the fact is that the workers in Lynn  
Lake are paying the  price for  the  fact that th is  Min ister 
did not force the issue with people who have hundreds 
of m i l l ions of dol lars, and $2.3 mi l l ion is owed to the 
workers of Manitoba and they did not get a d ime.  

Mr. Neufeld: M r. Chairman, if the Member for St .  James 
does not realize that Dynamic Capital Corporation or 
American Barrick, the two principal parents of LynnGold 
Resources, have no l iabi l ity, absolutely no l iabi l i ty, to 
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the workers of LynnGol d - LynnGold owed the money­
if he d oes not know th is, he better go back to law 
school .  

Mr. Edwards: Well ,  Dynamic Capital Corporation, for 
the M inister's i nformation, and I am sure he knows-

Mr. Chairman: Order, p lease; order, p lease. The 
Member for St. James. 

Mr. Edwards: Dynamic Capital Corporation is the very 
company that th is M inister was asking for some $ 1 0  
m i l l ion in  new investment from, a company that has 
some $500 mi l l ion in  assets, and that is l inked to Corona 
M i nes, with many more hundreds of mi l l ions of dol lars 
in assets. The fact is, this Min ister knows full wel l that 
m oney was available or he would not have been 
proposing a deal which provided for mi l l ions of dol lars 
to come into LynnGold from the outside i nvestors. 

Mr. Chairman, one of the suggestions put forward 
by Paul Bergan,  who is  the chairperson of the Lyn n  
Lake Cit izens Committee, i s  t h at they asked t h e  
Min ister-and t h i s  is a letter t o  M r. Fi lmon, t h e  Premier, 
dated the 23rd of November. It says, they woul d  l i ke 
the G overnment to preclude the need for col lect ion of 
realty and  schoo l  t axes,  a n d  water a n d  g arbage 
collection fees. I am sure the  M i nister has  been made 
aware of this letter. Can he comment on that specific 
request? What consideration has been g iven to it? I 
u nderstand of course that there is a $243,000 g rant 
which has been g iven to the municipality, but what 
specific response is going to be made to that request? 

Mr. Neufeld: First of all, let me answer his f irst 
a l legat i o n .  Dyn a m i c  Cap i ta l  Corporat i o n  owns  
approximately 1 6  percent if you pierce a l l  the  corporate 
vei ls of LynnGold Resources. Dynamic Capital , yes, has 
a lot of money, but they have no l iabi l i ty. They were 
u nder no obl igation to make any payments. I do not 
k now how the Member can sit there and say, they owed 
the money and should have paid ,  we should have forced 
them to pay. N ow, what utter bloody nonsense is this? 
As far as his q uest ion with respect to the community 
of Lyn n  Lake, the Department of Rural Development 
has m ade a commitment that the services wi l l  be 
maintained. The grants, so far, have been roughly in  
the  amounts necessary to  make up the  revenue shortfall 
due to the d iscontinuance of operation by LynnGold.  

Mr. Edward: Mr. Chairman, the fact is that th is  M inister 
was asking for a significant infusion of cash specifically 
from the d irectors, and in  particular Bob Buchan and 
Dynamic Capital Corporation. He was asking for that 
money to be put forward. They were the parties that 
were negotiat ing,  i n  fact. 

The Minister of Health (Mr. Orchard) says-is that 
wrong? Certainly not. What was wrong was that the 
Min ister of Health 's  colleague knew in early October 
that LynnGold had no intention of cont inuing that m ine. 
Yet he continued to negotiate and not force the issue 
of severance pay u n t i l  after - he negot i ated with 
someone he knew was not negotiat ing in  good faith.  
Perhaps the M inister of M ines and Energy ( M r. Neufeld) 
is taking a lesson from the Min ister of Health in  respect 

of his fiscal abi l ity. The fact is, there were threats which 
could have been made. 

I want to ask the Min ister why he did not at that 
time have with him -(interjection)- The Minister of Labour 
(Mrs. Hammond) says, threats. Well the fact is, LynnGold 
very clearly said ,  we are not going to pay severance 
pay. We have no intention of paying severance pay. 
The Government's obl igation in that context was to 
use whatever tool it had to provide for the workers, 
knowing that the mine was going to shut down, as the 
Min ister has admitted . 

* (2 1 00) 

The tool they could have used was to have said to 
the d irectors, we have every intention of pursuing you 
personally for severance pay under The Payment of 
Wages Act. We would like you to set aside, at this time, 
monies to cover those severance pay agreements, and 
perhaps could  have suggested to them that they might 
have talked to their insurers before they gave a negative 
answer, because the fact is they are insured. There is 
d irectors' l iabi l ity, which all of these d i rectors have. 
There is a pool of resources available to pay the 
severance pay, which was not raised by this Min ister. 

Mr. Neufeld: If we had made threats, as the Member 
for St. James (Mr. Edwards) suggests, they would  have 
fi led bankruptcy on September 1 .  That goes without 
saying.  That would  not have helped the matter. You 
could have chastised me severely if I had made those 
threats on September 1 ,  if I had not negotiated with 
them. We negotiated with them until three d ays beyond 
the layoff d ate. We negotiated in  good faith with them. 

You say we should have insisted they put up the 
money. How do you insist somebody put up money? 
They did not owe it. If negotiations succeeded they 
would not owe it .  I have asked you this before. You 
e ither negot i ate the con t i n u i n g  operat ions  or you 
negotiate cessation of operations; one of the two, you 
cannot do both. I ask you to explain to me how I could 
have negotiated both parts at the same t ime. 

Mr. Edwards: What this M inister did was continue to 
negotiate with a party that had made clear i t  was 
negotiating in bad faith.  He continued that, probably 
because of the pressure in  the House, that he felt he 
had to. It was a charade. The fact was, he had 
knowledge which the miners d id not have with respect 
to the real i ntentions of that company, and he d id  
nothing about i t .  

Is he aware that the company, as recently as a number 
of weeks ago, has offered to put up I believe 50 percent 
of the money owed under the severance pay package, 
with a further 50 percent to take the form of shares, 
keeping Lyn nGold open as a Shell research company. 
Is he aware that the company was wi l l ing to put some 
money up, not just shares, not just stocks-cash? Did 
he ever ask that question to find out if they are wi l l ing 
to put cash on the table for severance pay? 

Mr. Neufeld: The Member makes much of my knowing 
the intention of the company. I obviously do not know 
the intention of the company when I am negotiat ing.  
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An Honourable Member: You said half an hour ago-

Mr. Neufeld: I said it was our impression that the 
company was not going to meet the conditions that 
we i mposed upon them. What the company offered to 
the workers I am not privy to.  They may have offered 
them a part cash settlement and part share settlement. 
If they d id ,  and the employees turned it  down, that is 
not my problem. That is the problem of the employees 
and the company. 

Mr. Edwards: That is true. The last part of that is true, 
but the fact is that the company, the d irectors, were 
wi l l ing to put cash on the table for part of the severance 
pay. The question is, d id  the Min ister ever ask the 
d i rectors to put some cash on the table when the 
province had some leverage through supposedly good 
faith negotiations? Had that request been made, it 
would  have been abundantly clear- if the answer had 
been in  the negative from the company-that they were 
not negotiat ing in good faith .  

Mr. Neufeld: The company continual ly and repeatedly 
said we will try to make deals with the creditors; we 
wil l  t ry to reach a settlement with the employees; we 
wil l  try. We tried to pin them down as to how they were 
going to settle-would it be for cash or for shares? 
They would hint that it might be shares, or  i t  might be 
part shares and part cash,  but they would never put 
their money up. In all the times that we had d iscussions 
with them they refused to put money up. We repeatedly 
asked them to put some money u p  so we could carry 
on with the negotiations, but they refused . 

That was the reason for f inal ly-in  frustration we 
wrote one letter, I th ink earl ier in November, and one 
letter on the 9th of November, where we i nsisted that 
they either make a commitment or we woul d  withdraw 
ours. 

Mr. Edwards: M r. Chairman , I am cognizant of the fact 
that my col leagues from the th i rd Party may have some 
other questions. I have simply one more question. Again 
it refers back to the letter to the Premier (Mr. Fi lmon) 
from M r. Paul Bergan. Among other th ings he asks for, 
on behalf of the Lynn  Lake Citizen's Committee, is 
special subsidized rates for M an itoba Hydro.  What has 
been the Government's  response to that request put 
forward in  the correspondence to the Premier, dated 
Novem ber 23 of this year? 

Mr. Neufeld: Did you say in the Premier's response? 

Mr. Edwards: I am asking what the Premier's response 
wi l l  be. 

Mr. Neufeld: As far as I know there are a number of 
questions that were asked , and the questions were al l  
answered by the various Ministers involved . At this point 
in  time, Manitoba Hydro will not give d iscounted rates. 
I f  there is to be a subsidy it wi l l  have to come from 
the Government. 

Mr. Edwards: Can the Min ister ind icate, with respect 
to this $243,000 g rant, what period of t ime it  is meant 

to cover, and what arrangements have been made for 
renewal of a grant in the event that the community of 
Lynn  Lake needs further funding? 

Mr. Neufeld: The $243,000, M r. Chairman, represents 
three quarter grants from the company, grants in l ieu 
of taxes that the company was paying.  The company 
was paying the community $8 1 ,000 a quarter. They had 
made the first q uarter payment, but had not made the 
secon d ,  th i rd  and fourth q uarters. The $243,000 
represents $8 1 ,000 t imes three, $243,000 being the 
revenue shortfal l  from the company during the last 
three-quarters of the year. That was to December 3 1 ,  
1 989. 

Mr. Edwards: Is  it assumed then that, start ing again 
in  the first quarter of 1 990, further discussions will take 
place with respect to subsid ies to the community of 
Lyn n  Lake? 

Mr. Neufeld: I th ink that is a fair assumption. They wil l  
have to bring forward their budget. I would think they 
wi l l  be downsizing their budget somewhat from the 
p rev ious year, a n d  they w i l l  t h e n  come to the  
Department of  Rural Development for  assistance as 
needed. 

Mr. Cowan: The M i nister of Rural Development (Mr. 
Penner) was in the community of Lynn  Lake today and 
presented a cheque for the amounts which the province 
was going to pay to help the community maintain its 
base of the Min ing Commun ity Reserve Fund. Can the 
Min ister indicate what conditions were attached to that 
cheque? 

Mr. Neufeld: The money came from the mining reserve, 
but it is paid by the Department of Rural Development. 
I am not aware of cond itions that the M i nister of Rural 
Development attached to it .  

Mr. Cowan: Normally when there is money coming 
from a fund for which one Min ister has responsibility, 
and is  be ing presented or g i ven t h rough another 
Min ister, there would be a jo int  submission to Cabinet 
and Treasury Board, which would outline the conditions. 
Was that not the case in  this instance or did the Minister 
just hand over the money from the Min ing Community 
Reserve Fund to the Min ister of Rural Development 
(Mr. Penner) and say, do with it what you wi l l ?  

Mr. Neufeld: In fact ,  the  f u n d  be longs t o  t he 
Department of Finance and is admin istered by them. 
The m o n ies were t u rned over to the com m u n ity. 
Officially, I guess the M inister of Rural Development is 
the mayor of the community, inasmuch as it is a local 
government d istrict. They must account for the monies, 
and it is to be used in  the ordinary course of their 
business. 

* (2 1 1 0) 

Mr. Cowan: Was there a condit ion,  and I do not know 
this to be the case, I am asking the question, that i f  
the company were to go back into operation ,  that the 
money would have to be repaid to the fund? 
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Mr. Neufeld: If the company were to go back into 
operation the fund would demand that money from the 
company. 

Mr. Cowan: What if another company were to purchase 
the mine? Would the fund demand the money from 
another company? 

Mr. Neufeld: I would  have to check with the solicitor 
but my own guess woul d  be that we would  have n� 
claim against any company for past debts of a former 
company. 

Mr. Cowan: This matter would not be passed onto a 
future company, only the present company. LynnGold 
Resources, if i t  were to, for some reason, avoid  the 
bankruptcy and go back i nto operation, then they would  
be l iable? 

Mr. Neufeld: I wou ld  have to check with the solicitor 
but again I say it woul d  be my guess that i f  a new legai 
entity comes forward and takes over the operations, 
we would have no claim against them for debts incurred 
by the bankrupt. If i ndeed the claim could be against 
the property, the lawyer would tell us this. It is my 
u nderstanding that these grants were grants in l ieu of 
taxes and cannot be attached to the property itself. 
As such, my guess would be, although I must confess 
that I do not know the legal impl ications of that, if that 
were the case, indeed we would  ask our solicitor to 
g ive us an opinion. 

Mr. Cowan: I would  appreciate that information at a 
future committee hearing, if that would be possible.  

The community had been asking for some relief on 
their municipal taxes. The reasoning was as fol lows. A 
lot of people in the community wi l l  not be working now, 
they will be in financially d ifficult c ircumstances. They 
would l ike to stay in the community in the event that 
the mines should be purchased and operated by the 
same or d i fferent company, so that they could be there 
in order to take advantage of the succession r ights 
that woul d  accrue to them normally, and the opportunity 
to continue employment in their home community. 

A lot would  l ike to stay just unt i l  June, so that their 
kids can stay in  school, and that is particularly important 
to those who have chi ldren in the h igher grades in the 
h igh school. I t  is also important to a lot of the fami l ies 
with chi ldren in the lower grades as well. 

They would l ike some relief from the province with 
respect to the taxes they have to pay. The fact is that 
they would require agreement by the Min ister, if not 
the Cabinet,  for that rel ief to be provided. They have 
asked for two types of relief, I believe. One would  be 
for the penalties on late taxes to be foregone i n  any 
event. So that if they d id not pay their taxes for a period 
of time, and then they were able to because they had 
gained employment again - they want to maintain the 
house in the community-they would not have to pay 
the penalty. 

The other was for, and I th ink the more real ist ic  one 
at least, was for the complete relief from those municipal 
taxes for a period of t ime, so that they could sit this 
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out in the community, so that the community would  
not  be entirely abandoned , and that they would not 
h ave to pay t h at extra cost o n  not  h av i n g  a n y  
employment. 

I t  is my understanding that the Min ister of Rural 
Development (Mr. Penner) gave a flat no to both 
requests today when he was in  Lyn n  Lake, but I have 
not had the opportun ity to confirm that. I would ask 
the Minister if that was the d i rection that was g iven to 
the Min ister before going to Lyn n  Lake? 

Mr. Neufeld: I would take it that the M inister of Rural 
Development (Mr. Penner) took that decision because 
that is what he felt at the time, and I th ink that is under 
his jurisdiction and he can make that decision.  I th ink  
it is a l ittle early to start talking about what other 
assistance we should g ive. We have to have need 
demonstrated before we start handing out taxpayers' 
money. I f  i ndeed there is a need, that will be met. We 
have ind icated that in  the past and we wi l l  ind icate that 
aga in .  For a f lat  g rant  t o  every res i d e n t  of t h e  
community, I do not th ink that is the way to go a t  th is 
point. 

Mr. Cowan: The M inister has always said throughout 
this entire fiasco, and it has been a fiasco on the part 
of the Min ister, that now is not the t ime to d iscuss that 
issue. We have more t ime, we h ave weeks left, we h ave 
months left, we have days left , and the fact is that whi le 
he has been very patient, and it has had very l itt le 
influence on him, it has had a tremendous impact on 
the community and the people in  the community. 

I wi l l  tel l you right now they are f ighting for their 
future. I was there, I spent a bit of t ime there this 
weekend ,  talked to a fair number of people and they 
said that they need this sort of assistance from the 
Government. They said that it is important to them that 
they be able to stay in their communities. It is a tragic 
sight to watch fami l ies and friends split apart. I t  is just 
not co-workers who wi l l  never work with each other 
again,  who have probably worked with each other for 
years and in  some instances a generation, it is  fami lies 
that are splitting apart. 

One of the people with whom I spoke this weekend 
was going to Marathon, he was leaving his fami ly behind 
at least unti l  June. There are no accommodations in  
Marathon, the  k ids  were in  school .  He was going to  
go down there and stay with a friend. There was another 
family that was packing up everything on Boxing Day 
and travel l ing to another mine in Ontario. There are 
at least a couple of dozen stories l ike that right now, 
there wi l l  be more after Christmas, and there wi l l  be 
many more after June. 

All they are asking from their Government is a l ittle 
bit of compassion, a l ittle bit of u nderstanding ,  a l ittle 
bit of assistance. They are not asking for a lot. They 
are asking for what is owing to them. They want their 
severance pay from the company, they want their 
vacation pay from the company, they would l i ke their 
jobs from the company, but if that is not to be the case 
at least they want what is being owed to them from 
their past work. They would l i ke the Government to 
assist them with respect to some of the tax burden 
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that they have to pay, now that they wi l l  not have work, 
the G over n m e n t  t o  assist  them with respect t o  
maintaining the community, the Government t o  assist 
them in other ways if possib le. 

They wanted the Government to make a deal, to 
strike a deal , to bargain hard but bargain in  good faith 
to keep the mine operational.  Quite frankly, I blame 
the Government for the fai lure of the negotiations as 
much as I blame anyone else. As a matter of fact, I 
may even blame the Government a bit  more for the 
fai lure of the negot iations.- ( interjection)- The M in ister 
says they should have paid more. No, I never said that 
and I do not th ink that is the case. I th ink they could 
have negotiated better. I think it was a classic example 
of each party antagonizing the other unt i l  the l ines of 
c o m m u n icat i o n  broke  down t o  the extent where 
productive negotiations were i mpossible. I do not  blame 
the Government entirely for that, and I d o  not blame 
the company entirely for that. 

I do know that there was an honest effort to try to 
keep that mine operational. M aybe too m uch was being 
asked,  maybe too m uch was being offered. I had a bit 
of a d i lemma about this, because in  a way I thought 
m aybe the Government was paying too much that they 
had negotiated themselves i nto a bad deal,  but I was 
prepared to al low that to unfold and not to be critical 
of it i f  it would have saved the community. 

I, un l ike the Min ister, do not th ink that th is is only 
a bottom-line issue. Those are h is  words, he uses them 
q uite a b it-a bottom-l ine issue. I f  he did not use the 
term itself, he used the concept, and we wi l l  go back 
because we have it all, every bit  of it ,  on  the record 
that is i n  the record avai lable to us. The fact is the 
community required a bit of good negotiat ing from the 
Government and they got exactly the opposite. They 
got bad negotiat ing.  

* (2 1 20) 

They got a Government that constantly changed its 
posit ion.  I t  put a position on the table and then could 
not val idate it. Others came forward and said ,  many 
others came forward , not just the company, but the 
union came forward and said ,  we never heard that 
position.  No one seemed to have heard that position 
unt i l  the M inister mentioned it i n  the H ouse. I do not 
want to get back into al l  that because we wi l l  go over 
old ground. I do believe that the Government did bungle 
the negotiations. I also believe that the company should 
pay what it owes to the employees, that it should pay 
the severance pay to the employees, and that it should 
pay the vacation pay to the employees. There should 
not be any argument about that. That is owing and 
that should be paid. There is a responsibi l ity there. 

I wish it did not come to that. I wish we could have 
had a deal and whether $24 mi l l ion was too much or 
too l itt le,  I never d id  make comment upon because I 
q uite frankly d id  not know, but I d id know that the 
negotiations were handled qu ite badly. That is behind 
us. N ow what we have is a circumstance where the 
Government can continue along with its m ishandl ing 
of the situation by saying,  wel l ,  we need to review th is  
more, we need to protect the taxpayers' money at  any 

cost, and therefore we cannot provide the type of relief 
which is being asked in  this instance. The requests are 
there just the same. 

It is going to be a very d ifficult t ime for those fami l ies 
and workers and their friends in Lyn n  Lake. It is not 
just the 250 people who are employed by the mine. I t  
i s  m a n y, many more,  and some in m uc h  worse 
circumstances, some who are losing their jobs who do 
not have relocation and mobi l ity benefits available to 
them, many who are losing their homes who d o  not 
have any back vacation pay coming to them that can 
t ide them over for a l ittle while, many who are losing 
everyt h i n g  t h ey h ave i n vested in the b u s i ness 
community there stand to lose qu ite a bit. Although I 
h ave to tell you, they are fighting hard to survive, and 
to stay al ive out of hope that perhaps something wi l l  
happen which wi l l  turn the community around ,  but they 
have qu ite a bit at risk at the present time. 

They are the ones who are asking for some assistance 
and there are ways to shape that assistance. I f  the 
M i nister is worried about those who might not need 
the money, having the money made available to them, 
there are ways to get around that. I f  the Minister is 
worried about putt ing out al l  th is money and maybe 
something happening,  the mine becoming operational, 
there are ways to strike agreements to deal with those 
issues as well ,  as long as the M inister is prepared to 
be somewhat flexible. We h ave not seen enough of that 
yet. There are ways to deal with these issues. 

I do not believe it is entirely a decision for the M inister 
of Rural Development (Mr. Penner) to make as to 
whether or not that tax rel ief wi l l  be provided. He wil l  
be the one who wi l l  sign the document, but certainly 
that has to be a collective decision on the part of the 
Government. That has to be a Cabinet decision or a 
decision which at least goes to his ministerial committee, 
about which the Premier (Mr. Fi lmon) has made such 
great note in  the past. 

So I ask the M inister would he be prepared to 
recommend to the M inister of Mun icipal Affairs that 
they look at a flexible arrangement which can front 
some of that money now, or at least g ive some indication 
that there will be that relief from, in this particular 
instance, taxes. 

That is long way from the original request of the 
repayment of homeowners' equity and business-owners' 
equity, which was the fi rst request from the community 
and one which is st i l l  justified, but they have real ized 
that wi l l  be a request which wil l  not be granted by this 
Min ister or this Government, so they have tried to 
approach it from a scaled down approach they feel 
might f ind some favour from the Government. On their 
behalf, I would  l ike to know if the Minister would be 
prepared to look at those d ifferent options immediately 
to g ive them some indication as to whether or not they 
are going to have some rel ief afforded to them. 

(Mr. Edward Helwer, Acting Chairman , i n  the Chair) 

Mr. Neufeld: First of all ,  we have to understand that 
this is not under my jurisdiction. The relief on taxes 
would be that of the Min ister of Rural Development 
(Mr. Penner). I have said from the outset that where 
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need can be demonstrated , help wil l  be avai lable. I 
th ink the Member for Churchi l l  (Mr. Cowan) should 
understand as wel l  that there are a number of people 
in Winn ipeg and other Manitoba communities who are 
unemployed through layoff. 

If property tax relief is avai lable to those people in  
Lynn  Lake, should they not  be made avai lable to those 
people who are laid off in  Winnipeg, or laid off in  Portage 
la Prairie, or laid off in Brandon,  or laid off in Win kler, 
or Altona, or any other of those communities? I th ink 
we h ave to make a ru le which is acceptable and can 
be appl ied broadly, not just locally to the people of 
Lyn n  Lake. We have to make it fair. 

I want to make one more comment. The Member 
continual ly talks about our negotiations, or lack of 
negotiation knowledge. I want to say just one thing. I 
wou ld  accept h is position perhaps if I thought he had 
any knowledge h imself i n  negotiations. 

Mr. Storie: M r. Acting Chairperson,  I can assure the 
M i nister that the Member to my left has a g reat deal 
of experience in  negotiations and un l ike the M inister 
they were successful negotiations. I am not going to 
rehash the issue of negotiations. 

I want to say the issue seems to have escaped the 
M i n ister  and he  c o n t i n u es to com pare t h e  
c i r c u m stances i n  Lyn n  Lake w i th  u n e m p l oyment  
elsewhere, layoffs elsewhere. What we are talk ing about 
here is not s imply layoffs. 

The people who are laid off in Fort Garry can be 
employed in  St. James. They d o  not have to g ive up 
their homes. They d o  not have to lose the equity. They 
do not have to lose their businesses. They do n ot have 
to leave their fami lies. They do not have to u proot their 
l ives and m ove t h o u s a n d s  away t o  re-esta b l i s h  
themselves. We are not talking about t h e  same th ing.  
That is why when the people from Lyn n  Lake and my 
col league for Churchi l l  or  I or  anyone else ask for some 
exceptional consideration, we d o  so with some empathy 
for those people, and the Min ister appears to have 
none. He appears not to understand the di lemma that 
these people face. 

M r. Acting Chairperson ,  I was somewhat relieved to 
hear the M i nister say, wel l ,  yes, we had not thought 
about the whole issue of The Payment of Wages Act 
and whether there is something we can do to have 
vacation pay and severance benefits considered under 
that issue, and the M i nister continues to say, wel l ,  that 
is somebody else's responsib i l ity. That is somebody 
else's responsibi l ity. Frankly, we are getting t i red of the 
M i nister saying,  that is somebody else's responsibi l i ty. 

We want the Min ister to show some leadership. I 
continue to hear the M inister say that with respect to 
my community, with respect to the modernization effort, 
well the federal Government has to take the lead , 
someone else has to do the work, someone else has 
to show they care, I am just not prepared to do that, 
I am busy. It is real ly frustrat ing. 

Mr. Acting Chairperson, the M i nister also impl ied that, 
because the Opposition was suggesting the Government 
get serious about negotiations, that they show some 

f lex i b i l i ty and not t h i s  one-u p m a n s h i p  and 
confrontational att itude, somehow th is  meant we were 
siding with the company. We were not siding with the 
company at all. We bel ieve, like many others, that a 
deal was there to be struck. We bel ieve if the Minister 
or his staff had been serious or u nderstood what was 
involved in  the negotiations it could have been saved. 

The fact remains the Minister has not lost anything 
by th is. The Min ister can sit in  h is comfortable office 
and say, wel l you know, gosh, we d id  the best we could .  
He d id not take advice from anyone else. He did not 
take advice from the union nor from the community, 
and the end result  was that negotiations failed. Wel l ,  
who are we to blame? Who are the people in  Lynn 
Lake to blame and, yes, they do want someone to 
blame. 

The Min ister says, wel l ,  you cannot just blame me. 
You cannot blame me that your severance package is 
not going to be what you thought it was, or your vacation 
pay is not going to be available, or that you have lost 
al l  of your equity in your town and everything else. Well ,  
maybe t h e  Minister is partly right, maybe there i s  
someone else t o  blame. Maybe DCC or American 
Barrick have to share the responsibi l i ty. American 
Barrick is a big company. 

Given that negotiations have failed, clearly we believe 
the M i nister should be doing everything he can do to 
make sure those companies provide as much support 
as they can, as they are legally responsible to pay, as 
much as we can legally force upon them to pay. 
Recogn izing that companies operate with one motive, 
and one motive only, and that is to make a profit,  the 
fact of the matter is this company has enough resources 
to treat these people fairly. 

M aybe the M in ister can answer the q uestion: does 
the M i nister feel it is his responsib i l ity to act on behalf 
of the people of Lynn  Lake to ensure that these 
companies ,  American Barr ick i nc luded and the i r  
d i rectors i f  necessary, are h e l d  respons i b l e ,  
accountable,  f o r  t h e i r  ob l igat ions? I s  t h e  M i n ister 
prepared to not say, wel l ,  that is the Minister of Labour's 
(Mrs. Hammond) responsibi l i ty, or  the Labour Board , 
or someone else. Is the M inister prepared to say, yes, 
that is part of my responsib i l ity. 

* (2 1 30) 

Mr. Neufeld: The Member for Fl in Flon (Mr. Storie) 
leaves a lot on the record , but asks very little. Let us 
talk about what he has left on the record. I have not 
compared Lynn  Lake to other communities. I have said 
that if tax concessions are made to those who are laid 
off i n  Lynn Lake, why should they not be made to those 
who are laid off in Winn ipeg. We cannot isolate one 
community and say we wi l l  make tax concessions here. 
The laid-off workers, for those who are laid off i n  
Winn ipeg , it is equally traumatic a s  it is for those in  
Lyn n  Lake. Nobody l ikes to be la id  off, and  nobody 
l ikes to see people get laid off. 

We think the situation in Lynn Lake is t ragic. I agree, 
it is tragic, but it has happened. I have never said it 
was somebody else's responsibi l i ty. What I have said 
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was that where you ask me a question and it is not 
withi n  my jurisdict ion,  I have said that fal ls under the 
jurisdiction of the M inister of Labour (Mrs. Hammond) 
or the Minister of Rural Development (Mr. Penner), and 
I do not want to answer it for them. 

You ind icated that you d id  not side with the company. 
Wel l ,  I suggest you d id .  When we i nsisted the company 
put aside sufficient monies to make the severance pay, 
and we made that one of the conditions under which 
we would advance monies to the company, you sided 
with the company and said we should withdraw that 
condition.- ( interjection)- Yes, you d id .  

Mr. Storie: Wel l ,  M r. Act ing Chairperson,  that is just 
nonsense, and the M i nister knows it. What we said was 
that the province was layin g  out conditions, some of 
w h i c h  were tota l ly  u n accept a b l e  a n d  wou l d  be 
unacceptable to virtually any company in  the same 
position,  regardless of their intentions with respect to 
continuing operations. That is what we said ,  not that 
workers should not be protected . 

The second point is, and my colleague made the 
point that because of the way negotiations occurred , 
the M inister d id not negotiate. He d id  not start off by 
trying to determine what the company needed and by 
making a counteroffer and staging negotiations. He 
apparently rather clumsily said ,  there is $24 mi l l ion on 
the table, take it  or leave it. I t  was not even structured 
in the appropriate way. However, the M inister began 
h is remarks by sayin g  that he was not comparing the 
situation i n  Lyn n  Lake with others, and then he went 
ahead and tried to compare them again .  The fact is ,  
and he said ,  quote, a layoff is traumatic anywhere, i t  
does not matter whether it occurs in  Lynn  Lake or occurs 
in Winnipeg. 

An Honourable Member: Is it not? 

Mr. Storie: Wel l ,  yes, M r. Act ing Chairperson,  it is 
traumatic, but the situations are not analogous at al l .  

An Honourable Member: They are not? 

Mr. Storie: I have just said the person in Lyn n  Lake 
is losing his equity. He is losing his job. He is losing 
his town, his community, where he bui lt  his l ife. The 
person in St. James can work somewhere else and sti l l  
l ive i n  St .  James and not  lose anyth ing.  The situations 
are not analogous at all. The M i nister continues to 
confuse that in  h is mind, just as he has confused the 
negotiations from Day One, that is the problem. He 
does not understand the circumstances. 

Now we have a circumstance where the Minister says, 
wel l ,  I am not prepared to do anymore. We are asking 
now that he make sure that the companies including 
American Barrick and DCC l ive up to their obl igations 
and, if they wi l l  not l ive up to them wi l l ingly, then the 
province use every avenue at its d isposal including legal 
recourse to make sure that they do, and to carry it to 
the ful l  extent so that whatever the people in  Lynn  Lake 
might be entitled to by law, whether we finesse it or 
not, they receive. 

M r. Act ing Chairperson, I would like to ask the 
Min ister as wel l ,  how much money there is in the Min ing 
Community Reserve Fund.  
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Mr. Neufeld:  The Member for Fl in Flon says he no 
longer wants to discuss the negotiation that went on 
and then goes on to discuss at length the negotiations 
as he might have done it ,  or possibly as we should not 
have done it. I ask the Member, which condition should 
we have withdrawn? Should we have withdrawn the 
conditions that the severance pay be met, or should 
we have withdrawn the condition that the other creditors 
be paid? I suspect that the Member for Fl in Flon (Mr. 
Storie) has gone to the Member for Church i l l 's  (Mr. 
Cowan) school of negotiations. I do not understand h im 
at  a l l .  

There is approximately $9 mi l l ion  in  the Community 
Reserve Fund .  

Mr. Storie: There is $9  mi l l ion in  the  Mining Community 
Reserve Fund ,  and obviously the Min ister h as not 
committed anywhere near that amount of money to 
support the community at this time. He also continues 
to say that where there is need -the Minister cont inues 
to be very reactive to situations, whether it is the 
negotiations or the trauma that is in Lyn n  Lake, and 
continues to say, wel l ,  when someone comes to me, I 
wi l l  do something.  I want to know whether the M inister 
can table with us any analysis of what the needs might 
be for the community of Lynn  Lake over the next 18 
months, the next six to 1 8  months. Has the M inister 
done any anticipat ing? 

Mr. Neufeld: Wel l ,  I am sure that the Member for Fl in 
Flon does not want us to make a grant of any amount 
to the community without a need being demonstrated. 
I am sure he u nderstands that taxpayers' money has 
to be accounted for, and the Government in its spending 
must be accountable. That may be strange for h im,  
but  that is the way we came into  power. 

We feel that we are accountable for the monies and,  
if there is no need , I do not th ink we should pay out 
the money. I have said from the start if a need can be 
demonstrated , we wi l l  be there helping,  but unti l  there 
is a need demonstrated - i f  the employees get a 
substantial amount out of their vacation pay, should 
we sti l l  pay them the monies equal to their taxes, or 
should we g ive them a grant equal to their taxes? What 
would you expect? I would expect that if they get a 
substantial amount for vacation pay or severance pay 
or both ,  that we should not pay their taxes. That is, 
we should not make an automatic grant for tax relief. 
That should be on demonstration of need. 

Mr. Storie: M r. Act ing Chairperson,  I do not know 
whether the M in ister intentionally misunderstands or 
whether he cont inues to be confused about what the 
company's obl igations are, what we are asking the 
Government to do as part of their obl igation to these 
people. 

The fact of the matter is, the question I asked the 
M inister is whether he had anticipated any need. What 
is going to happen? What I am asking the Minister is, 
has he or his staff made any attempt to look at what 
the future looks l ike for the people of Lynn Lake? How 
many people are going to be in school a year from 
now? How many staff are they going to need? What 
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are the hospital needs going to be? How many people 
are they going to reduce? How many businesses are 
going bankrupt? How many people are going to be left 
there to support the business infrastructure? How many 
stores are going to be closed? What is the population 
level going to be? Those are all problems that I can 
predict right now without having any access to any of 
the information the Minister has access to. There are 
a whole series of problems coming for that community. 

I am willing to bet this Minister has not said one 
word to his staff about what the future is going to look 
like and what needs they are going to have and how 
he is going to address them, how he is going to respond, 
and whether there is something he can do in advance 
of those small but continuing crises to assist the 
community, to soften the blow, to make life easier. Is 
there anything that he has done in that regard? 

Mr. Neufeld: There is not one problem that the Member 
for Flin Flon suggests that we have not anticipated . It 
is the answers that are hard to come by. It is easy 
enough to sit here and suggest the problems. We have 
to find the answers, and we are in the process of looking 
for answers. We are in the process of dealing with the 
community itself. We are in the process of dealing with 
the workers and the community to find answers, but 
to expect answers for something that is going to happen 
18 months hence today, I think is being a little 
unrealistic. 

Mr. Storie: Mr. Acting Chairperson , I was not asking 
for answers for problems, what I was asking was if he 
had done any thinking about it. Can he tell us what 
problems are going to exist? Are there any ways that 
those problems can be avoided? I referenced the 
school. I mean, there are at least a half-a-dozen 
potential ways to prevent the enrollment losses that 
are going to naturally occur if the Minister does not 
do anything. I mean, what I am trying to find out is if 
the Minister has developed any sense of being pro­
active and trying to anticipate problems and deal with 
them before they become overwhelming. The Minister's 
answer is obviously no. 

Mr. Acting Chairperson , the community has received 
some assistance from the Minister of Rural Development 
(Mr. Penner). That money comes from the Mining 
Community Reserve Fund? That was what was indicated 
earlier. Can the Minister indicate whether the 
municipality has asked for any ongoing assistance from 
the Community Reserves Fund, other than the lost 
revenue? 

Mr. Neufeld: The $243,000 will approximately, I 
understand, make up their budget for the rest of this 
year, their revenue budget. They have not to my 
knowledge asked for any additional assistance at this 
time. It is my understanding the Department of Rural 
Development and the community will be looking at 
preparing their budgets for the coming year. In that 
they will have to recognize some downsizing, and I 
should think they will be coming back with that in due 
course. 

• (2140) 

Mr. Storie: Mr. Acting Chairperson, I heard part of an 
interview with the mayor of the community this evening 
in which he suggested the community was going to be 
be looking for support. Either they have already made 
the request, perhaps to the Minister when he was in 
town but perhaps through other sources as well , for 
assistance for operation of their recreational facilities, 
particularly their curling rink . Is the Minister prepared 
at t his point to indicate whether money might be 
available to support those activities, at least on the 
short term, while the community re-establishes itself? 

Mr. Neufeld: We have indicated to the community that 
we are prepared to fund the revenue shortfall to the 
extent it is needed. To that end, we have advanced 
some $243,000.00. Now, I am not aware or I am not 
certain whether the company funded any other activities 
for the town but, if indeed there are monies needed 
for the community club, it is something we have 
discussed in our committee meetings. I should think 
that, if the monies are needed to fund the community 
club and the curling rink, the request will be looked 
upon with favour. 

Mr. Edwards: I must apologize I have not sat through 
the entire Estimates in this department. Can the Minister 
indicate what amount of money is presently sitting in 
the Mines Reserve Fund? 

Mr. Neufeld: I have just told the Member for Flin Flon 
(Mr. Storie) it is about $9 million . I think it is $9 million 
plus some change. 

Mr. Edwards: Can the Minister, specifically, tell us what 
the purpose of that fund is? 

Mr. Neufeld: It is to assist communities in distress, as 
LynnGold is now. 

Mr. Edwards: That is its only purpose? 

Mr. Neufeld: We have also, in the past, funded some 
other activities like economic development officer, 
tourism officers. It is not something we have done a 
great deal of, but we have done it in the past. 

Mr. Edwards: Aside from this payment of $243,000, 
what monies have been paid out of that fund in this 
fiscal year? 

Mr. Neufeld: Approximately $49,000 to the community 
of Leaf Rapids, and about-there was an amount to 
the City of Flin Flon, I am not quite certain . That may 
not have been in this fiscal period. It may have been 
last year, both of those may have been last year, so 
this $243,000 may have been all of it. But in total, since 
we took office, we made one payment to Leaf Rapids, 
I believe, for $49,000 and one payment to Flin Flon­
do not hold me to it-in the area of $25,000 or 
$30,000.00. 

Mr. Edwards: Presumably that $9 million sits in some 
form of interest-bearing accounts. Can the Minister 
indicate how much interest is earned per year on that 
account? 
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Mr. Neufeld: The money sits with the M inister of 
Finance (Mr. Manness), and I believe he pays interest 
equal to the interest he pays on h is  other borrowings. 

Mr. Edwards: Would it be safe to say that would  be 
in the range of somewhere between 8 percent and 1 0  
percent? Can the M inister g ive any ind ication a s  to 
what roughly that percentage woul d  be and therefore 
what f igure we are deal ing with in terms of interest 
earned on that fund per year? 

Mr. Neufeld: It woul d  be in that area, in the area of 
10 percent. I do not know what interest rate the Minister 
pays, but it would  be somewhat less than the prime 
rate the banks charge. 

Mr. Edwards: So without d ipping into the principal 
amount, there is $900,000, roughly, per year avai lable 
in this fund of which in this fiscal year $243,000 has 
been paid out. H ave I got that correct? 

Mr. Neufeld: We d id  pay some out I am told for tai l ing 
research at Sherridon,  but that was a minimal amount, 
$25,000 to $30,000.00. 

Mr. Edwards: So there is a min imum of approximately 
$600,000 available in i nterest for th is fiscal year. That 
is money which would simply be added to the principal 
at the end of this year for payments i n  exactly this type 
of situation. 

Mr. Neufeld: I th ink that arithmetic is r ight. 

Mr. Edwards: I want to reference an answer the 
M inister gave i n  response to a question on October 
27, the very day that LynnGold proposed bankruptcy, 
f i led their proposal . He said :  "I said yesterday and I 
wi l l  say again today, the decision to keep the m ine open 
or close the mine will not be that of the Government. 
It wi l l  be that of the company, and I think i t  is out of 
respect that we must wait for them to make the decision 
and for them to make the announcement. "  Did the 
M inister know at that t ime that i n  fact they had fi led 
a proposal i n  bankruptcy and , i f  so, when did he first 
know they were going to defin itely f i le for bankruptcy? 

Mr. Neufeld: That was on October 27. We d id  not 
k now, we probably were advised on that date by letter 
that they were going to. I cannot now recal l  what day 
I first had knowledge of their i ntent. They may have 
phoned us and told us or they may have written us. 
I cannot now recal l .  I am told it must h ave been after 
October 27. 

(Mr. Chairman i n  the Chair) 

Mr. Edwards: Can I then assume the company d id  not 
inform the Min ister of their meet ing on October 25 
when they dec ided , in fact, t o  f i l e  a p r oposal  i n  
bankruptcy. That decision, made October 25, was not 
communicated to the M inister. Is that correct? 

Mr. Neufeld: I am not aware of any-who held the 
meeting on October 25? 

Mr. Edwards: Just for clarificat ion,  the d irectors of 
LynnGold held a meeting on October 25 at which they 

decided and made the decision to fi le a proposal in  
bankruptcy. That decision was not communicated at 
that t ime to the Min ister, is that correct? 

Mr. Neufeld: I cannot - I  am told that is correct. It was 
not communicated to us at that time. I th ink,  as I recal l ,  
our first knowledge of the bankruptcy was when we 
received the proposal from the receiver. 

Mr. Cowan: M r. Chairperson ,  the other evening we had 
a discussion with the Minister respecting a new analysis 
that had been done of the M ingold gold reserves. At 
the first committee hearing,  the Minister clearly stated 
that he d id  not know of any analysis, that none had 
been done is actually what he had indicated. 

At the next committee meet ing ,  we informed h im that 
we had indeed found out from reliable sources that a 
study had been done. He confi rmed that in fact he had 
been wrong the day previous and that there was a 
study which had been done, but would not tell us the 
amount of depletion that the new study indicated in 
the gold in  the orebody at the Farley L ake deposit .  

We have now been informed that it is about 30 percent 
less gold,  according to the new study. Can the M i nister 
ind icate if that is the case? 

M r. Neufeld: M r. Chairman, the difficulty here is that 
you deal in q uantity and you deal in grade, and to make 
comment or statement of 30 percent reduction would 
be very difficult to do. The Strathcona people, i n  arriving 
at their conclusions, decided their own numbers were 
better than that of this new report, or more rel iable 
than that of this new report, and used their own figures 
in arriving at their conclusions. 

Mr. Cowan: Then it is not the case that this information 
became available after the Strathcona Report had been 
released publ ically or completed? 

Mr. Neufeld: The Strathcona people, in arriving at their 
conclusion,  had access to the report, but in  their review 
decided the figures they had previously were m ore 
rel iable and used those figures in writing their report. 

* (2 1 50) 

Mr. Cowan: So before Strathcona completed its report, 
it had access to these new figures which showed 
approximately 30 percent less ore at the Farley L ake 
deposit than was indicated to be the case in their report. 
Is that what the Min ister is saying? 

Mr. Neufeld: I had never said there was any decrease 
in the value of the deposit. We are talking value, we 
are not talking decrease of ore q uantity. We are talking 
total value, and in ar r iv ing  at the i r  conc lus ions ,  
Strathcona, who are more knowledgeable in  min ing 
than I am and I am sure than the Member for Churchi l l  
is, decided their figures are more rel iable and I wil l  
accept that decision. 

Mr. Cowan: The second report- let us cal l it the second 
report before we can get the time l ine establ ished 
because I am having some d ifficu lty doing that with 
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the M inister. The report which became known to us 
just the other day was a report that was commissioned 
by M M R  and Mingold jointly. Is that the case? 

Mr. Neufeld: Yes. 

Mr. Cowan: When was that report commissioned? 

Mr. Neufeld: Sometime earlier i n  1 989. 

Mr. Cowan: Can the M inister be a bit more definit ive 
than that? 

Mr. Neufeld: We will have to talk to the president of 
M an i toba  M inera l  Resou rces a n d  I w i l l  g et t h at 
information for the Member tomorrow. 

Mr. Cowan: When the Minister is g iven that information, 
can he also obtain from h im the d ate upon which that 
report was completed and forwarded to Strathcona 
M inerals? 

Mr. Neufeld: Yes. 

Mr. Cowan: Wil l  the Min ister also provide us with h is  
definit ion of how the orebody could be determined to 
h ave 30 percent less gold and yet not have a decrease 
in its value? 

Mr. Neufeld: I do not think I have acknowledged any 
percentage decrease, so I cannot provide you with an 
opinion. 

Mr. Cowan: Can the M inister then contradict with any 
authority the figure of a 30 percent decrease which 
was provided to us again by a very reliable source. We 
can go back and confirm if necessary, but I can tell 
you it was a source d i rectly involved with the report. 

Mr. Neufeld: All I can say is that I have confidence i n  
the reports written b y  Strathcona Resources. They have 
qual ified people. They have knowledge of that orebody. 
They reviewed the second report and decided the 
figures from their original report-and in  total there 
have been some four reports on this, four different 
studies-were more reliable than this second report. 
I will accept, as I said before, the opinion of those more 
knowledgeable i n  the area than I am. 

M r. Cowa n :  Who d i d  the second  report? W h at 
company? 

M r. Neufeld: We had the name of that company the 
last time and I cannot recal l  the name of the company 
now. You gave it to us and we confirmed it ,  so you 
should have the report. You should have the name. I 
do not know the name of the company. 

Mr. Cowan: Does the name Roscoe Postal r ing a bell 
with the Min ister? 

Mr. Neufeld: If you know the name of the company, 
why go through this charade? 

Mr. Cowan: I t  is not a charade. What I am trying  to 
d o  is make certain that we are indeed talk ing about 

the same report because the Minister is very unsure 
of h imself, very vague. Either he does not know or he 
is trying to hide what he does know, and I do not know 
either to be the case. The fact is ,  he is making it very 
d ifficult for us to confirm this information in a report 
that was compi led with publ ic money, which was done 
on behalf of Manitoba Mineral Resources and on behalf 
of M ingold,  and done by a company which one would 
hope they would have some confidence in. Otherwise, 
they would not have g iven that company the task of 
determin ing what the orebody was at the Farley Lake 
deposit. 

So the fact is that I do not know, because the Minister 
has not been very forthcoming, if we are indeed even 
talk ing about the same report. He wi l l  not tell me what 
figures were included in the report, about which he 
knows. I am, at least , asking him to tell me if it is in 
that instance Roscoe Postal that d id  the report. 

Mr. Neufeld: I th ink I have already said that is the 
name of the firm. I repeat for the Member for Churchi l l ,  
we have to accept the opin ion of  Strathcona Resources 
in that their f igures, the ones they used in their report, 
are more rel iable than the ones used in the second 
report. 

Mr. Cowan: Why? 

Mr. Neufeld: I th ink they were talking technical matters 
here of which neither you nor I are very conversant 
with. We have to accept, for technical details, the 
opinions of those who are qual ified in  that area. I am 
prepared to do that, and I would have expected you 
might be as wel l. 

Mr. Cowan: Maybe we would have been, had we known 
there was this report , or had when we first found out 
that there was this report which was kept from us. I 
do not know if that was intentional or unintentional , i f  
it was done with some purpose in  mind by the Minister 
or the president of M M R  when we had them before 
committee, or whether it was just an oversight on their 
part. The fact is, it does make us somewhat suspicious. 
Then when we do find out that there is this report that 
was not before known to us, we asked if there is a 
report. The Min ister says no,  there is not a report. We 
go back and check our sources, and our sources 
ind icate that yes, there is such a report. So we come 
back here and ask the Min ister, is there a report. He 
says, oh yes. Now, today is a d ifferent day, and today 
there is a report when yesterday there was not a report. 
It is like the $24 mi l l ion that bounces around like a 
bouncing ball whenever the Minister speaks. 

So then we ask the M in ister, wel l ,  what was the 
decrease in the orebody according to this before 
unknown report, or at least the report that was unknown 
to us? And he says, we do not know. So we go back 
to our source and the source says that the decrease 
was in the area of 30 percent. We come back to the 
Min ister and we say -(interjection)-

Some Honourable Members: Oh, oh!  

Mr. Chairman: Order, please; order, p lease. 
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• (2200) 

Mr. Cowan: Wel l ,  the M inister for Rural Development 
(Mr. Penner) says they do not l ike a certain ind ividual 
in Lynn  Lake. I can tell h im that he is not endeared to 
the hearts and minds of those in Lyn n  Lake today, 
particularly after his meeting today, particularly because 
he is part of a Government that has so badly bungled 
this whole episode. They have put an entire commun ity 
out of work and essentially d estroyed it u nless some 
turn of events takes place now. That will be no credit 
to the Government if it does happen. 

An Honourable Member: Prop up the gold prices. 

Mr. Cowan: The Min ister of the Environment (Mr. 
Cummings) goes back to the old red herring of propping 
up the gold prices. No one asked this Government to 
prop up the gold prices. Al l  they asked this Govern ment 
to do was to negotiate fairly, confidently and in good 
faith ,  and that t h i s  Government  d i d  not  d o .  T h i s  
Government totally rejected i t s  opportunity to provide 
some leadership  in  this area and to strike a deal that 
would  benefit not only the community but the province 
as a whole. 

He has to assume a g reat deal of responsib i l ity for 
that as wel l .  It is not just the Min ister of M ines, although 
we target most of our crit icism toward him. Perhaps 
that is unfair in a certain respect because he has told 
us already today that he had nothing to do with the 
fact that you will not give tax relief-and when I say 
you, I look d irectly at the M i nister of Rural Development 
(Mr. Penner)-to the community when they request it .  
He said that was your decision ,  and your decision unto 
yourself -(i nterjection)- Wel l ,  now it gets interest ing 
because now the M inister of M i nes ( M r. Neufeld), from 
his seat, clarifies h imself when he says that it was the 
Min ister of Rural Development's decision,  but not his 
decision unto h imself. 

Perhaps we can go back to that issue and ask the 
Min ister of M ines if he gave any advice to the M i nister 
of Rural Development with respect to that particular 
decision. 

Mr. Neufeld: I have g iven no advice to the M inister of 
Rural Development (Mr. Penner) with respect to his 
decision. 

I want to comment on one other thing. Much has 
been said about the Farley deposit and the technical 
detai ls of studies that were done with respect to it .  I 
th ink it has to be remembered that Farley deposit is 
owned by Manitoba M ineral Resources, 55 percent, 
and Mingold.  Manitoba M ineral Resources is a Crown 
corporation but it is not their report that we are here 
to review. We are here to review the report for the 
Department of Energy and M ines. 

The Department of Energy and M ines does not have 
knowledge of what happened to the Farley deposit 
studies. That is a question that should be asked of the 
president of M an itoba M ineral Resources. It is unfair 
to ask that question of staff here or of me now. I accept 
your request for it, and I wi l l  get the information.  

Mr. Chairman: Shall  the item pass- pass. 

The hour being 10 p .m. ,  committee rise . 

• (2000) 

SUPPLY-NORTHERN AFFAIRS 

The Acting Chairman (Mrs. Iva Yeo): This section of 
the Committee of Supply wil l  come to order to continue 
cons ider i n g  the Est i m ates of the Depart ment  of 
Northern Affairs. When it last met,  the section was 
deal ing with item 1 .(b)( 1 )-the Honourable Member for 
Niakwa. 

Mr. Herold Driedger (Niakwa): To continue where we 
were last t ime, we had an unspoken agreement that 
we would continue to ask q uestions in general topic 
areas rather than going line by l i ne, and I would like 
to fol low up on a few points which were raised by the 
M in ister of Northern Affairs (Mr. Downey) in  his opening 
address. He referenced a few points and I would l ike 
to ask a few questions on that. 

With respect to the Northern Flood Agreement, the 
Minister referenced that global negotiations had begun. 
Is th is process something which was come to by 
agreement with al l  the groups concerned? Rather than 
going the arbitration route, you were going to basical ly 
have a series of negotiations or one global set of 
negotiations would come up with a final settlement, or 
was that agreed to by al l  parties? 

Hon. James Downey (Minister of Northern Affairs): 
M adam Acting Chairman, yes. 

Mr. Herold Driedger: This is just because I have had 
some questions brought to my attention by some of 
the people involved. On these negotiations, when an 
agreement has been reached, is this agreement binding 
on al l  four parties, or is th is a situation whereby 
ind ividuals may decide they do not l ike the agreement 
and nothing is going to happen , so basically they wi l l  
go back t o  what they had before? 

Mr. Downey: It is unfortunate that the Member has 
not been paying more attention to the activities which 
have been going on as we have been talking about it .  
I wi l l  try to be helpful to my friend and col league. 

The four parties agreed to put in  place four senior 
negotiators, and before the conclusion and/or anything 
which would be advanced, I wou ld  expect that al l  four 
parties would  agree to those negotiations. That would 
be my understanding,  and that is my understanding 
of  what is i n  fact taking place-four parties to the 
agreement. Before a conclusion to that agreement 
wou l d  be reached , the four  part ies wou l d  be i n  
agreement through their negotiators. 

Mr. Herold Driedger: I thank the Min ister for that bit 
of clarification. I know what the term " negotiation" 
means as wel l .  I am just wondering whether or not 
everybody within the process- and I am not talk ing 
just from the Government s ide,  Hydro s ide,  but rather 
from the Northern Flood Committee side as wel l .  Is 
everybody in  that particular group also in  agreement 
with that? I guess when you negotiate, you normally 
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end up not always getting everything that you want. 
Sometimes we have to compromise, and I think that 
is something a negotiator understands. 

I am just wondering if one of the Flood Committee 
bands, say, is not satisfied with the process, is there 
a contingency plan that is in place, or is a settlement 
or-no, I guess agreement could be involved with 
negotiations. If one of the groups is not pleased with 
the situation or decides that the negotiations are not 
going their way, is there a contingency plan whereby 
Government might come to a decision that imposes a 
will of some sort? 

Mr. Downey: Madam Acting Chairperson, as I 
understand it, the five Northern Flood Committees 
entered into negotiation by hiring a senior negotiator 
who was to represent those five bands. We have a 
senior negotiator, Hydro has a senior negotiator, and 
the federal Government has a senior negotiator. It is 
my understanding that those senior negotiators are 
representing all the groups that they are hired to do. 
So I cannot answer specifically on behalf of the Flood 
Committees that are involved, but I would expect that 
when their negotiator speaks, he speaks for the five 
chiefs that are on the Northern Flood Committee. 

Mr. Herold Driedger: Is there any contingency being 
planned for, should these negotiations not bear fruit 
at all? I understand that before the negotiation process 
began, as it is now with senior negotiators for all four 
interested parties, individual claims were settled by 
arbitration and it essentially depended upon each 
individual claimant making his/her case. Is there any 
contingency within the department as to what to do, 
should these negotiations not bear fruit? 

Mr. Downey: Madam Acting Chairperson, that is strictly 
and totally hypothetical. 

Mr. Herold Driedger: I understand it is hypothetical, 
but we are dealing here with something that has been 
going on for a long time. I would think that people are 
entitled to know whether or not the process can have 
a solution or will have a solution one way or the other. 
I assume, as we all do, that when you have people 
negotiating and they are negotiating based upon a set 
of cond itions or set of ideas, eventually an agreement 
will be reached. But sometimes negotiations do not 
bear fruit. We see this in labour negotiations. We 
sometimes call in an arbitrator. We sometimes call in 
for outside assistance. I am wondering if the Minister 
has either a policy, or whether there is-other than the 
comment that it is a hypothetical situation . Because it 
is hypothetical, we are looking forward to a possibility 
that may happen. I do know that in other labour 
negotiations this is something that is available and is 
thought about ahead of time because sometimes 
negotiations do fail. 

Mr. Downey: Madam Acting Chairperson, I made a 
comment earlier that the question was hypothetical. 
Let me just give a brief history for the edification of 
the Honourable Member opposite, and I am sure the 
Member for Rupertsland (Mr. Harper) will want to join 
in or confirm or deny some of the things that I may 

want to say. I will try to be brief and keep it to the 
point because I think it is important that we do, that 
the Members clearly understand this. 

• (2010) 

On being elected almost two years ago now, spring 
of this coming year, we found that discussions and 
negotiations between the Northern Flood Committee 
and the previous administration had not gone very well. 
It was signed in the fall of 1977, the Northern Flood 
Agreement, and we have come to the time some 12 
years later when the community people had seen very 
little compensation from the Flood Agreement. 

It was a commitment by our Premier and by our 
Government to put in place a senior negotiator, that 
the bands would put in a senior negotiator, Hydro would 
do the same, and so would the federal Government. 
That was done, Madam Acting Chair. As well, to show 
that the Government of Manitoba meant what they were 
saying in good faith, we advanced $10 million to the 
Northern Flood Committee, and that money probably 
was some of the first money that had a major impact 
in those communities. 

I hope the Member is clear. I am telling him what 
has happened to date. The hiring of those senior 
negotiators has put in place at the senior level , 
negotiations to try to get a final resolve both in financial 
reward and land settlement which has not been done. 
Progress had been very minimal. People in those 
communities had not seen the benefits. 

I can tell you who has seen a lot of benefits, and 
that is the legal profession in this country and the 
consultants. We through our Government made the 
determination that enough was enough, that the people 
deserved to have settlement and resolve of this issue. 
So I will bring the Member where it is to date. We have 
had very positive negotiations and discussions among 
the four people involved, the four units: the bands, 
the province, the Hydro and the federal Government. 

It is in, I would say at this point, a delicate situation. 
I am aware that the Members have had discussions 
with some of the councils of one of the communities. 
I say, with the best interests of those communities in 
mind, that I would not want to get off into a political 
fight on the issue here and have what I would consider 
a degeneration of the positive discussions that have 
taken place. 

That is why the protocol as far as I am concerned 
is to leave with the negotiators the job of doing what 
they were hired to do, that is, to get a global settlement 
prepared for us as principals. At this particular time, 
and I say it straight out, I am waiting for a response 
from those senior negotiators. I hope Members opposite 
would be of the same mind, and I hope the Member 
for Rupertsland (Mr. Harper) would be supportive of 
this, that it is time to get the land issue resolved and 
to get the financial reward issue resolved so the people 
in those communities can get the benefits. I say without 
speculating into the future whether it is going to be 
accepted or whether it is not, the protocol as far as 
I am concerned is to deal with the senior negotiators 
and wait for the report back. I am hopeful that it is 
positive. 
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Mr. Herold Driedger: I thank the M i nister for that 
lengthy answer and the h istory. I qu ite agree. Just to 
summarize then, it is his bel ief that the negotiations 
wi l l  reach an agreement that wi l l  be satisfactory to al l  
part ies. 

Mr. Downey: Let me repeat for the Member. We have 
each h i red a senior negotiator. It is my hope tha.t those 
senior negotiators wi l l  be able to put together the 
final ization of a settlement t hat al l  parties can l ive with. 
When I say al l  parties, the protocol is the province, 
Hydro, the federal Government and the five bands that 
have made the decision through legal agreement to 
work together to a resolve of the Flood Agreement. 
That is why we have entered into it .  When one looks 
at what we have paid in, Madam Act ing Chair, the 
province has probably put in, with the $10 mil l ion we 
have put in, some $22 mil l ion from the provincial 
taxpayers, and I feel the majority of that should be 
g o i n g  t o  the residents  of t hose com m u n i t ies .  
Unfortunately, a lo t  o f  it has not. The  first $ 1 2  mi l l ion­
a lot  of  it d id  not. 

I just want to make it absolutely clear that I have 
faith in the N orthern Flood Committee, I have faith i n  
Hyd ro ,  I h ave fa i th  i n  t h e  federal  G overn m e n t ' s  
negotiator a n d  o u r  negotiator. When more can be 
disclosed or when we are through negotiations and if  
it is not accepted, then the Member wi l l  k now. If  it is 
accepted , then the Member wi l l  know also,  but I d o  
not  want  t o  dera i l  o r  t o  c a u s e  p r o b l e m s  i n  t h e  
negotiations that are currently taking p lace. 

Mr. Herold Driedger: It is not my intention to prejudice 
those negotiations either. 

One last q uestion on th is topic, Madam Acting 
Chairperson ,  i n  the Flood Agreement,  the Government 
has just announced or has signed a deal with Ontario 
regarding the Conawapa Dam. Is th is i n  any manner, 
shape or form, the Conawapa project itself, a part of 
this g lobal negotiat ion package, or is that a completely 
new area of concern? 

Mr. Downey: As far as I understand it ,  it is a completely 
new area to be dealt with and it is not tied to the 
Northern Flood Agreement settlement. 

Mr. Elijah Harper (Rupertsland): I guess I wil l  continue 
with the q uestioning on the N orthern Flood Agreement. 
I do not want to prejudice the negotiations myself. Could 
the Minister clarify? You said you have a legal agreement 
in place in  respect to the g lobal negotiations. Is that 
correct? Is there an agreement in place to achieve that 
g loba l  negot i a t i o n s  are g o i n g ?  Is t here a lega l  
agreement amongst the  four parties? 

Mr. Downey: No, the only legal agreement was the 
one that was signed in 1 977. What is currently in  p lace 
is an unwritten agreement between the four parties to 
get to some final conclusion,  a resolve to an agreement 
that, as I have pointed out and I think the Member is 
wel l  aware, has not total ly been missing the mark, but 
a lot of community people have not been getting the 
benefits. That has been the continual crit icism I have 
had .  Legally, there is the 1 977 agreement between the 

four parties. Currently, there was an agreement between 
t h e  F lood C o m m i ttee,  t h e  H y d r o ,  the  federal  
G overn ment  and the  p rovi nce to use four  seni o r  
negotiators t o  try t o  get a final resolve to t h i s  long 
outst a n d i n g  prob lem for the Northern  F lood 
communities. 

* (2020) 

Mr. Harper: I just want to reply to the statement that 
the M i nister had made when we were deal ing with the 
negotiations when we were in  Government. We would  
l ike to th ink that we were do ing qu ite wel l i n  negotiat ing 
with the bands. As a matter of fact, the negot iations 
that he talked about in  trying to achieve the $ 1 0  m i l l ion 
advance was the time when we were going through an 
elect ion,  and I believe we also ind icated that after the 
elect ion we would pursue that. 

I would l i ke to ask the Min ister, are there any 
condit ions or anything attached to the $10 mil l ion that 
was advanced to the N orthern Flood bands at a l l ,  or 
is that to be applied against the f inal settlement that 
is to be reached? Could the M i nister answer that? 

Mr. Downey: Yes, it is to be applied to the final 
settlement. 

Mr. Harper: The M i nister has mentioned that we had 
been talk ing to one of the communities outlying.  One 
of the concerns they had: was the Government bringing 
in  any kind of legislation respecting Northern Flood? 
Is there any indication or any purpose in  bringing in 
leg is la t ion  w i t h  respect t o  the Northern  F l oo d  
Agreement because they h a d  asked me that? I would 
l ike to clarify that- maybe it was just a rumour-just 
to put it to rest. 

Mr. Downey: I thank the Member for that q uestion. It 
would be my hope that through mutual agreement a 
resolve is accomplished between the four parties and 
at t h i s  p o i n t  I see no need for  leg is la t ion  t o  be 
introduced . There is not legislation on the Order Paper. 
I am not proposing at this point any leg islation. 

Mr. Harper: I thank the M inister for that answer. 
believe it would not be in the best interests of the 
bands to bring in  legislation. I think this woul d  be 
negotiated with al l  the parties concerned . 

T h e  other  q uest i o n  I wou l d  l i k e  to ask of t h e  
M i n ister - I  k now that  modern-day t reat ies are 
protected under the Constitut ion. Does he consider the 
Northern Flood Agreement as a modern-day treaty that 
would be recogn ized under the Constitut ion? 

Mr. Downey: Madam Acting Chairperson, I consider 
the N orthern Flood Ag reement a legal agreement 
between four parties. 

Mr. Harper: Yes, I know it is a legal agreement, but 
I wanted the Min ister to answer that q uestion in  regard 
to whether this could be considered a modern-day 
agreement .  I k n ow that  l a n d  c l a i m s  u nder  t h e  
Constitution could b e  a s  a modern-day agreement, so 
I wanted to know from the Minister whether he considers 
that or not. 
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Mr. Downey: I am not absolutely clear on the q uestion. 
The Northern Flood Agreement is a legal agreement 
between four parties. I do not see it as being anything 
more or anything less than precisely that. 

Mr. Harper: The reason I asked that question of 
clarification was that treaties are protected under the 
Constitution,  and also under land claims and other 
agreements t h at are reached w i t h  the federal  
Government and p rovincia l  Govern ment.  The land 
c l a i m s  a re recog n ized a n d  p rotected under the 
Canadian Constitution and so forth,  so I wanted to get 
the facts on record as to whether this Government or 
t h i s  M i n i ster wou l d  recogn ize the N o rthern F lood 
Agreement as a modern-day treaty which is worded in 
the Canadian Constitution. I would appreciate if he 
would take this as notice and maybe report back to 
me later if he is not sure. 

Mr. Downey: I woul d  say again to the Member that 
th is is a contractual agreement, not a constitutional 
agreement. 

Mr. Harper: I wil l  take his answer then, and then maybe 
fol low it up later. 

On the negotiations that are taking place, I wanted 
to know if a final offer is  being discussed at th is time, 
whether i t  is sti l l  i n  negotiation with a l l  the parties or 
whether actually a settlement, a f inal offer, has been 
offered to the bands. Is that on the table now, or is it 
sti l l  at the discussion stage? 

Mr. Downey: As I indicated earl ier, there is a land issue 
and a financial issue. There is a range of which is being 
discussed. The Honourable Member, Madam Acting 
Chairperson ,  indicated he d id  not want to jeopardize 
the negotiations, and I would  feel by getting involved 
in d iscussion of the specifics of negotiation,  i t  could  
in  some way prejudice those d iscussions that our  senior 
negotiators are having.  I say there is a range and that 
is al l  I can say at this point. 

Mr. Harper: I d id  indicate to the M inister that I did 
not want to prejudice the negotiations. Al l  I wanted to 
k now was whether negotiations are cont inuing.  I do 
not want to get a specific amount of dol lars that are 
being offered to the bands. I just want to know whether 
these d iscussions are ongoing or whether at this time 
the offer has been made. I know that in  deal ing with 
land,  this is a matter which would take a long t ime, 
but I want to know as to the status of the negotiations. 

Mr. Downey: Let me make a general comment, Madam 
Acting Chairperson.  As far as I am sure the Honourable 
Mem ber for Rupertsland (Mr. Harper) is concerned and 
the M e m ber for N iakwa ( M r. Hero ld  Dr iedger )  i s  
concerned, and hopefully they see for far too long the 
dragging on of this-and I think I saw the heads shaking 
i n  the affirmative when I said the communities were 
not getting the benefits out of a lot of the monies that 
were spent but a lot of the legal firms and some of 
the consultants. I have great respect for lawyers and 
consultants, but I also know that there are people out 
there who have expected for some time now some 
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resolve to the issue and for them to get some of the 
d irect benefits. 

They are in active d iscussion at this particular time. 
I would hope before too long that the negotiators would 
be able to come back with a report that is positive. 
However, that is all I can say at th is point. 

Mr. Herold Driedger: I would have to concur with the 
Minister's last remarks. I do not think anybody here 
wishes to prejudice the negotiations that are presently 
going on. I bel ieve we al l  recognize the difficulties that 
we have had in the past. We have also recogn ized , as 
he so eloquently said ,  that the people who are getting 
wealthy on this are the lawyers and the consultants 
and not the people d i rectly concerned. I th ink we all 
wish to see that rectified in  one way, shape, or form. 

Because-and I expect concurrence with this as wel l  
i n  this comment-there has been this view o f  the 
process as not benefitting the people d irectly impacted 
but benefitt ing others, there is some u nderstandable 
concern on their part. If we reflect some of that concern 
as best we can w i thout  act u a l l y  g et t ing  i nto  t h e  
negotiations, I t h i n k  t h e  M i nister w i l l  u nderstand that 
we are simply doing what is best for a constituency 
that has not been served wel l  in the past by virtue of 
al l  the problems they have had to contend with. I th ink 
every Government has made an attem pt to try and 
come to some grips with  th is ,  but it  has taken longer 
than these people wanted. 

I f  I may go on to a totally new area for the time being 
and I think a much less sensitive area of questioning, 
just to put these questions into context, the Government 
announced recent ly  that they were embark ing o n  
another round o f  decentralization. When i t  comes t o  
taking a look a t  areas where decentralization can occur, 
we often look at departments that have responsibilities 
in  many d i fferent parts of the province. 

In that respect, the Department of Northern Affairs 
fully fits that b i l l .  I recal l i n  the first term of office a 
considerable amount of decentralization occurred i n  
Northern Affairs. You opened up offices in  Thompson 
and The Pas and other places and really we could  
probably benefit. I am giving the Minister a chance to 
actually extol the virtues of decentralization here and 
act u a l l y  to  a l l ow h im t o  put  some very pos i t i ve 
comments on the record, and I am sure he wil l take 
advantage of the opportunity I am g iving h im.  

* (2030) 

What I am real ly trying to get at is i f  he would g ive 
us an idea as to the costs with respect to transportation,  
because we do know that when you decentral ize and 
when you have to br ing people to meetings, particularly 
when Winn ipeg is the central place and a lot of people 
must come to meetings, other departments that are 
perhaps trying to do the same thing can take benefit 
from the experience that N orthern Affairs has had and 
perhaps read into some of their l ines what they may 
have to budget for, given the fact that the transportation 
costs should rise. 

When the Min ister stands up to answer this question, 
I really would l ike h im to address several points: (a) 
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I guess he can weig h  the benefits of the decentral ization 
against the costs of transportation. (b) I guess he should 
also weig h  the benefits of the decentral ization with 
respect to the abi l ity of the department to service its 
programs and to service the area it is supposed to 
provide the benefits to. (c) Also, if he would  spend 
some time in  cautioning other departments perhaps 
into moving into this area as to what some of the 
downsides are as he sees them. 

Mr. Downey: Madam Act ing Chairperson, I have to 
resist temptation in the i nterest of making sure the 
Members opposite do get an opportunity to ask as 
many questions as possible, so I wi l l  try to keep my 
answer fairly short and specific. We have some 56 
communit ies under the responsib i l ity of the Northern 
Affai rs Department. Eighty percent of our staff, which 
provide services to those communities, are outside the 
City of Winn ipeg -SO percent.  Thompson is the centre 
for the Northern Affairs Department as it relates to the 
del ivery of tec h nical services to the comm u nit ies,  
economic development opportunities, local Government 
opportunit ies and financial support tor the funds which 
are dealt with. So let me say, seeing that Thompson 
is virtually in  the geographic centre of Manitoba and 
the communities that are under the jurisdict ion of the 
-(i nterjection)-

Now to conclude my remarks as they relate to 
Thompson being in the geographic centre of Manitoba, 
it is the most cost-efficient way of delivering services 
to those communit ies. Yes, i t  costs money to fly from 
Thompson to Winn ipeg or to d rive from Thompson to 
Winn ipeg, but i t  also costs money to go from Winn ipeg 
to Thompson. So I th ink we should cal l it a d raw, really 
because of the delivery, the amount of activity that is 
going on i n  the North and the tact that 80 percent of 
our staff are in The Pas, Thompson, and our northern 
reg i o n s ,  M ad am Act i n g  C h a i rperso n .  The cost 
effectiveness is there, and the service is better delivered 
from those points outside of Winn ipeg. 

Mr. Herold Driedger: M adam Acting Chai rperson, I 
notice when I look at the l ine items of your department, 
Mr. Min ister, the transportation l i ne has a very hefty 
component to it because it d oes take into account this 
aspect. If I can just take a look at going back to the 
q uestion I asked him last week, the Native Affairs 
Secretariat, which d ischarges quite a few responsibi l ities 
as he referenced in the negotiations and things l ike 
that, has a $43,000 component to the Transportation 
sect i o n .  Does t h i s  mean t h at the N at ive Affa i rs 
Secretariat people are expected to move around the 
department to carry out their responsib i l ities? Is that 
what that l ine item is for? 

Mr. Downey: Madam Act ing Chairperson, the Member 
made reference to transportation. Not only are we 
talking about transportation costs between Winn ipeg 
and Thompson, Winn ipeg and The Pas, but we are 
ta lk ing  about  t ravel l i n g  from Thompson to those 
communities, which is in  a lot of cases by air, and the 
provision of services by air to those communities from 
the department .  Because of the northeast reg ion ,  
without an  all-weather road , most of  those communities 
h ave to be accessed by a i r. It is n ot j ust the  

transportation cost to and  from Winn ipeg as  it relates 
to Government, but from the central region of, say, 
Thompson to some of the smaller communit ies. 

The secon d  question the Member referred to is  the 
travel expenses as they relate to Nat ive Affairs. We are 
dealing with some specific issues as they relate to Native 
Affairs, and some of the meetings again take p lace in  
Thompson and The Pas. We have a lo t  of  activity going 
on in  that area. It  is u nderstandable that we should 
take the people to the communities rather than have 
the communit ies come to the central office all the t ime. 

Mr. Herold Driedger: Just to summarize then, the 
secretar iat ,  n ot necessar i l y  al l  10 peop le  in t h e  
department, but t h e  secretariat then spends a g reat 
deal of its t ime in the communities l iaising with respect 
to its particular responsibi l it ies. 

Mr. Downey: Yes, Madam Acting Chairperson. I know, 
for example, that we h ave had some d iscussions taken 
place as they relate to gaming, taxat ion,  Child and 
Family Services issues, which we are working co­
operatively with the M i nister of Fami ly Services as it 
relates to the Native chi ldren. There is a fair amount 
of travel ,  as there is on certain issues as they relate 
to matters in  Ottawa. That is the travel budget which 
is used tor that purpose. 

The Acting Chairman (Mrs. Yeo): Shall the item 
pass-the Member tor Rupertsland. 

Mr. Harper: I wanted to go into another area. This is 
i n  regard to the Treaty Land Entit lement. Could the 
M inister provide us with the up-to-date report on that, 
where the Treaty Land Entitlement is at and whether 
there is any conti nuation of the negotiations? 

Mr. Downey: Madam Acting Chairperson ,  there is a 
desire by the Government to proceed on the issue of 
Treaty Land Entitlement. However, the Member is wel l  
aware o f  the fact that t h e  federal Government backed 
away from the table when he was the Min ister, when 
he was close to having  an agreement on it .  At this 
point, we are prepared to deal with it as an ind ividual 
b a n d  comes forward to lay t h e i r  case before 
Government. We are prepared to take up their  case 
specifically with the federal Government as it relates 
to the land claims. 

As an overall resolve to the land claims issue, I have 
to say that the posit ion has not really changed or I 
have not been informed by the federal Government 
that the position has changed, that they are prepared 
to go back and do it on a blanket basis, but we are 
prepared to advance band by band their issue of land 
claims settlements. There are not any major settlements 
under Treaty Entit lement before us and/or the federal 
Government at this t ime, although I am as Min ister 
prepared to advance on a global basis again as soon 
as we can get the federal Government to come back 
to the table. 

• (2040) 

Mr. Harper: Madam Acting Chairperson, I know that 
the federal Government would want to approach this 
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issue on a band-by-band basis. I think that is their 
policy. I think if they would change that policy and I 
have asked that they would take up the negotiations 
on a band-by-band basis. I did ask the Premier (Mr. 
Filmon) some time ago whether there has been any 
change in policy in respect to how this Government is 
approaching the Treaty Land Entitlement issue. The 
response that I received from him at that time was that 
they would carry on the global negotiations, the whole 
Treaty Land Entitlement, bands would be negotiating 
as a whole. To me, the Minister indicating that they 
are ready to negotiate on a band-by-band basis is a 
change of policy. Whether that has been announced 
to the bands or not, whether the federal Government 
has had any influence in respect to this Government, 
I would like the Minister to explain whether this is an 
ad hoc policy, whether this has been a reversal of the 
policy that the Premier enunciated some time ago. 

Mr. Downey: I want to make it very clear to the Member 
that there has been no change of policy. I concluded 
my remarks that we were prepared and that we still 
want to have a global settlement as it relates to Treaty 
Land Entitlement. However, if a particular band comes 
forward-and if I did not indicate it to him clearly 
enough I will do it now-it is our intention to at least 
sit down and discuss with those individuals bands what 
their situation is. I do not think it would be fair to neglect 
them and ignore them. Really that is what I was trying 
to explain. It would be our hope to get a global 
settlement with the federal Government as it relates 
to all the bands in the province under the policy which 
the Member is referring to under his Government. 

I guess I would have to do a little more study and 
research as to why he failed. I am not criticizing him. 
I think he was prepared to go ahead, the former 
Government was. It was the federal Government that 
backed away from the table. Now he was not able to 
get them to sign it. He was not able to get them back 
to the table. I guess if he wants to say that I am not 
better than he, then I am prepared to put myself in 
that category as it relates to the Treaty Land Entitlement 
settlement issue. 

Mr. Harper: I am sure the Minister could speak for 
himself, and also what position he takes will determine 
that by the people . Surely, the policy that this 
Government is prepared to talk to individual bands has 
not been enunciated by him whether the bands are 
ready to follow that process. I know that some of the 
bands would have to deal with the land issue, but 
whether that could be settled totally would jeopardize 
the other bands. 

The best course would be to get at least the bands 
back at the table to discuss the strategy of how best 
to deal with the reluctance of the federal Government 
to continue discussions. As a matter of fact , we as a 
Government did pass an Order-in-Council to proceed 
with the Treaty Land Entitlement. Unfortunately, the 
Minister of Indian Affairs at that time, who was Mr. 
McKnight, did not respond to the Government or to 
me when I was Minister. He later responded to me. It 
was on February 26, 1987, that I finally received a 
response from him indicating that he was not prepared 
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to proceed with the agreement in principle which was 
reached by the federal Government, by the province, 
and by the Indian chiefs. 

I was just wondering whether you as Minister would 
be able to provide some leadership, urging the bands 
to come together, and also start initiating some 
discussions at this time because land settlements are 
a priority in northern areas. It affects their economic 
development, their area development. It might very well 
affect the transmission line the province is trying to 
build. Now under that, the Treaty Land Entitlement 
Agreement, there are provisions where bands can agree 
for public access, for reserve lands, or for transmission 
lines, or for any public purpose. 

If you do not have an agreement, you might have 
some problems if the whole land issue is not settled, 
not only that, but the whole development of the North. 
I think the bands would like to have their land settlement 
dealt with as soon as possible so they can proceed to 
develop many of the opportunities which are there. I 
was just wondering whether this Minister would initiate 
those discussions. 

Mr. Downey: Madam Acting Chairperson, we meet on 
a fairly regular basis and I am quite prepared to 
entertain any subject which is to be put on the agenda 
by the Assembly of Chiefs and/or any individual band 
who want to discuss with me Treaty Land Entitlement. 
The issues which have been forwarded in a priority 
area have been child welfare, taxation, gaming and 
health . The Member is now saying Treaty Land 
Entitlement is another one which he as an individual 
has a major interest in. I too have a major interest in, 
because I believe it is incumbent upon the province 
and the federal Government, particularly the federal 
Government, to get this issue resolved. 

Now I am not clear as to where the Member is coming 
from as it relates to the northeast hydro. I hope he is 
supportive of that development, Conawapa, the 
northeast hydro line, and the line which would go into 
some-that overland line which might go into seven 
communities. But am I hearing him correctly that he 
is saying he may not be supportive of that? He may 
see reason to not proceed with that. I am not quite 
clear on that, if the Member would want to clarify himself 
because there are some particularly seven communities 
there which need an overland hydro line which would 
give them the same kind of hydro service as every 
other Manitoban enjoys. 

I would hope he would clarify his position. I do not 
anticipate-I say that to the best of my knowledge. It 
is our plan as a Government to do all of the 
environmental work which is necessary, that it is our 
plan to make sure that all the grass-roots people, the 
Native communities, the provincial communities, are 
fully aware of and can participate with employment 
opportunities, with training opportunities, as it relates 
to Conawapa and the northeast hydro line. 

I see it as a major development, some $5.5 billion, 
of which I would hope the Member would want the 
people that he represents to participate in that kind 
of an initiative. I know he was excited about it the day 
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it was announced because he came to me and clearly 
indicated it was time to go and meet with the community. 
Some of that has taken place, but I do plan to do it 
in  a major way. I am not qu ite clear on what he is saying 
about how the Treaty Land Entitlement ties to the 
development of the Conawapa project. 

Mr. Harper: I was not criticizing the northeast hydro 
l ine. As a matter of fact , we h ave been waiting for that 
for  m a n y  years.  What  I espec i a l l y  sa id  was that  
Conawapa, the  Bipole 3 project go ing  on the  east side 
of Lake Winnipeg and also if you wanted to have access 
to the land, it seems to me that the bands are at least 
g iven the last priority in terms of the lands that they 
want.  A lot of t imes when bands want to have any k ind 
of  development or a development is tak ing place, it 
seems to me that their concerns are not being brought 
up. 

I think it is about t ime the whole question of the 
Treaty Land Entitlement is dealt with.  Land that is  due 
for many years, land that is  not surveyed , land that 
they are entitled to, not necessarily by the provincial 
but by the federal Government because they turned 
the land over to the provincial G overnment and there 
are provisions, as the Minister knows, under the Natural 
Resources Transfer Act to p rovide land back to the 
Canadian Government so Canada can fulf i l  its Treaty 
obl igations. So, in that sense, the bands i n  those areas 
need more land. 

• (2050) 

I would l ike to address those land issues so that the 
M inister would  be clear as to where I am coming from .  
I was n o t  criticizing t h e  n ortheast hydro l i ne, but 
certainly I would criticize the M i nister at any t ime if the 
opportunities are not there. I just wanted to i ndicate 
to him that I wou ld  support h i m  in br inging those Hydro 
projects to the people, but n ot at the total expense 
against the aborig inal people, but I just wanted to put 
that m atter to rest. 

Mr. Downey: Madam Acting Chairman, I feel a speech 
coming on that would maybe be better not to g ive, but 
I do have to g ive part of it anyway. Let me just look 
at the record briefly of where we have come from since 
our short term in  office as it relates to northern Hydro 
development, Northern Flood Agreement development. 
Yes, the Member was unable to personally accompl ish 
the Treaty Land Entitlement issue but maybe, if he were 
to come over to th is side of the House and work with 
me, we could accomplish that. We would not be working 
at odds, Madam Acting Chairman, that he could help 
me accomplish some of the things for his community. 

***** 

The Acting Chairman (Mrs. Yeo): The Honourable 
Member for Rupertsland ( M r. H arper), on a point of 
order. 

Mr. Harper: Yes, I would l ike to sit on that side, but 
he would  be sitt ing on the other side if I sat over there. 

The Acting Chairman (Mrs. Yeo): The Honourable 
Member does not have a point of order. The Honourable 
M inister. 

***** 

Mr. Downey: That real ly was not the way I had it figured 
out, and that is the problem with communicat ion,  
Madam Acting Chairperson ,  and I wi l l  try to get my 
signals more clear to him.- ( interjection)- I cannot repeat 
what he said. It was all aboveboard. Seriously though ,  
I am proud of  the  record of  th is  Government and the 
Member keeps alluding to the fact that he was going 
to do it,  or they were working on it ,  but it is the final 
accomplishment that really counts. That is why I th ink 
i t  i s  i m portant  that  m y  co l league g ive ser i o u s  
consideration to t h e  record o f  t h e  past administration 
and what we have been able to accomplish. I am 
prepared , and I have said this t ime and t ime again and 
I wi l l  say it now, to have the Member work with us in  
some of the positive activities as it relates to Conawapa, 
the Bipole, Treaty Land Entitlement, because they are 
i mportant issues. It is u nfortunate that the Treaty Land 
Entitlement has not been resolved. I t  is i mportant to 
the people who feel very much that the land that they 
have coming to them should be clearly identified and 
should be i n  their possession. I support that and I want 
to see it resolved . 

However, there are other important issues, and I say 
there is a major land issue as it relates to Northern 
Flood Committee. I t  is unfortunate that he could not 
get h is col leagues to work with him, to support h im,  
to get to that resolve. I say that most sincerely. He 
needed more support from his col leagues and the 
former Premier. A g a i n ,  I a m  p repared t o  take 
suggestions from h im,  I am prepared to work with h im 
to get to the goals that I th ink we al l  agree have to 
be met. I think that it is i mportant that he know h ow 
I feel about it .  Our posit ion on Treaty Land Entitlement 
is not any d ifferent than what his was. Let us just press 
to get that goal accompl ished. 

Mr. Herold Driedger: Thank you, Madam Chairman. 
I just hearken back to one of the comments made by 
the Min ister previously, requesting the Member for 
Rupertsland (Mr. Harper) to cross the floor to sit on 
his side of the Chamber. I believe that the point of 
order, although it was not a point of order, was a point 
wel l made. But rather than having -(interjection)- another 
comment thrown across the floor, do you want to come 
too? It  behooves us well to remember that in  th is 
Chamber al l  57 of us work towards the same goal and 
cannot al l  s it  on the Government side at one t ime, 
because if we d id we would  not have any Opposit ion 
at al l  to keep us in  check. I th ink we should bear in  
mind that the  people of  the  province here chose to  
make the  Opposition stronger than  the  Government 
for a very sign ificant purpose, and that was because 
I guess they felt that the Government was doing too 
much and would not have sufficient Opposit ion to keep 
it in check. 

I n  that respect I th ink we should bear in mind that 
this Chamber seems to reflect- it does not seem to 
want to work very efficiently sometimes, but it does 
reflect the needs of the moment. The needs of the 
moment right now, I bel ieve, are that we should keep 
our excesses in  check and try to work in  moderat ion.  
In  that respect, I do wish to assure the M inister that 
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anyth ing positive that he and h is  Government come 
up with I wi l l  truly support. What is not positive, of 
course, I will criticize, and I wi l l  criticize it not because 
I am negative, as we sometimes are tended to be 
accused of being,  but rather because that is the role 
we are charged to play, and that role I will d ischarge 
at this moment in  t ime. 

On a new area of questioning,  I would l ike to go 
back to something on the Urban Native Strategy. One 
very quick question to sort of provide the focus, would  
the Minister provide for me please the l ine item to which 
the budget of the Urban Strategy is assigned? 

Mr. Downey: I t  is on page 53, part of the item which 
says Grants, $648,000.00. 

The Acting Chairman (Mrs. Yeo): Shal l  the item 
pass-the Member for N iakwa. 

Mr. Driedger: Then I guess I am going to have to ask 
for a little bit of explanation on th is l ine. I know we 
had a bit of trouble with this last Tuesday as wel l ,  and 
I am wondering if it is perhaps simply the fact that I 
am asking my questions incorrectly, or whether the 
answers are not answering the q uestion that I asked . 
I wi l l  just basically ask the question again. 

We have two l ines here under the Native Affairs 
Secretariat: Grants and Aboriginal Development Fund. 
As I understand it ,  one l ine is for core funding,  and 
one l ine is for project grants. I n  that respect, is the 
Urban Nat ive Strategy core funding or is it  project grants 
and, if it is project grants, which l ine does it come 
under? That is al l  I want to know. 

Mr. Downey: It is in the Grants. It is considered to be, 
at this stage, a specific project . I t  may well lead to a 
core funding in it iative, but at this particular juncture 
it  was put in the line of Grants as an administrative 
procedure. 

It  is not, and at that t ime was not perceived to be, 
an ongoing program expenditure, but a grant for the 
purpose of gett ing the information we have to date. 

Mr. Herold Driedger: I recall I asked- I  have been 
trying to get some information with respect to the 
strategy. I have the recommendations in  front of me. 
One of the recommendations which was suggested was 
that the strategy was to recommend that th is be 
developed , the assemble and i nventory of services 
which are provided to Indian and Metis people in urban 
centres, the name of the del ivery agent, the objective, 
the targets, the source and amount of fund ing .  

I t  is i n  l ight  of that recommendation that I also wrote 
a letter to the Deputy Min ister requesting that if i t  was 
possible to obtain a copy of the programs which were 
d irected towards Nat ive people and if possible also the 
d ol lar f igures attached to them. I felt these had been 
ongoing for some t ime that this should be reasonably 
easy to obtain .  

I d id f ind  out  later on after I had  written the letter 
that there was publ ished in  the back of one of the 
reports- because it is  a weighty document, it took me 
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a while to get through the whole th ing -that the type 
of service programs was l isted and consequently I went 
through it. I noticed that the l ine item I was interested 
in ,  which was dol lars amount, was empty, was not fi l led 
in. I was th inking I might actually have to wait for the 
strategy process to carry on to get this information, 
when l o  and  beho ld  I stu m b led across a s m a l l  
publ ication called Inventory o f  Labour Market Programs 
and Services in Manitoba, put out no less by the 
Employment and Immigration people planning and 
analysis branch of the federal Government. 

* (2 1 00) 

To my surprise, when I went through that, I found 
much of  the i nformation I had requested was already 
p u b l ished and known.  N ow,  wi th  respect to that ,  
programs which were actually l isted in  the I nventory 
of Labour Market Programs and matching that program 
to the l ist of programs which are identified in the Urban 
Strategy project, I noticed there are only six programs 
specifically targeted to Native people, which are not 
currently identified in this labour market analysis. Those 
are housing, justice, which is on pages 1 and 2 of the 
U rban Strategy Report, and Chi ld and Family Services, 
which acts as a l iaison, largely as a jurisdictional k ind 
of body which d oes, I guess, d irect inquiries. 

The rest of the programs which are l isted and I th ink 
are of i nterest to us are accessi ble to al l  Manitobans. 
I am wondering if the strategy, i n  its attempt to come 
to grips with what programs are being offered to the 
Manitoba Nat ive community, should be accessing or 
focussing more on that which is already being targeted 
specifically to the Native community, and suggesting 
whether or not that may be sufficient or should be 
increased , or whether they are being charged to find 
out what percentage of whatever other program there 
is might be d i rected towards the Native people. 

I would like to put that last question into context. I n  
t h e  total l ist ing o f  programs or agencies which are 
d irected towards the Native people or towards other 
people, 61 programs are being identified . Of those, 
only 19 specifically are targeted to Native people. That 
means there is a large number which are not, and that 
is in the general area. I am wondering, are we looking 
here at determining what percentage is being d irected 
towards Nat ive people, or should we be looking rather 
at the programs where specific targeting is taking place 
and emphasize that and expand on that. 

Mr. Downey: Madam Acting Chairperson,  for fear of 
trying to ever begin to understand the q uestion, I w i l l  
respond to it that it  is worthy of  consideration what 
the Member has referred to. I would be asking the 
N at ive Affairs Secretariat to d iscuss with the leadership 
of the urban Native community to try to bring into some 
form of context and understanding what they feel the 
Member has recommended, and if there is any better 
provision of services with the resources avai lable. I 
guess that is the bottom l ine that he is getting to is 
that there may be an opportunity to either better access 
or expose program and program del ivery to a broader 
range of urban Native people, if I am hearing correctly 
what he is saying, that there are a lot more p rograms 
out there that are not being accessed . We should put 
our efforts toward making those programs avai lable. 
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I am not opposed to that. I wi l l  try and have a review 
done of the Member's question, so that I can better 
respond to it, but I hope I have answered in the best 
way possible at this point, or maybe he can further 
clarify the question. 

Mr. Herold Driedger: With apologies, I realize I was 
rambl ing a l ittle bit i n - it was not so much a question 
as sort of a comment on what had been d iscovered 
and what I know has been answered to me in previous 
questions as to what role the consultant who will be 
g iven the role of  expand i n g  some of  the  
recommendations or taking i n to  account some of the 
recommendat ions of the Urban  Strategy Report , 
because I do believe that the M inister in one of h is 
previous responses suggested that it was not the Native 
Affai rs Secretariat alone that would be looking at the 
Urban Native Strategy, but rather there would be a 
consultant. 

I am trying to make certain that we are not walk ing 
the same path twice when we do already have this 
i nformation,  which I know I asked a question of the 
Deputy M inister. I got back the comment that it was, 
"The data are d ifficult to generate. Substantial care 
must be taken to assure that in  attributing expenditures 
to the Native target group that allocations are performed 
in a consistent fashion across programs. " 

I realize that when there are many, many programs 
that are not specifically targeted that here we might 
be fal l ing into the trap of saying this percentage is 
Native and that percentage is not, and really it becomes 
a k ind of a roulette, who gets to go there first. I do 
be l ieve t h at the objective of  t h e  strategy was t o  
deliberately address specific needs o f  a community with 
problems in hous ing ,  problems in social  services, 
p r o b l e m s  in e m p l oyment ,  p r o b l e m s  in eco n o m i c  
development. The l ist i s  endless, but the problems were 
there. We know the problems. 

I am just trying to make certain-what I would l ike 
to see is that the few dol lars we have to al locate to 
an important task be assigned as efficiently as possible. 
I real ize that there is some role for determin ing what 
is available and what is being targeted , but I would  
l ike from the Min ister, I suppose, if I was to make the 
question quite specific, perhaps to put h is policy i nto 
the answer. Should we be expanding on the target 
group? Should we be either looking at the al location 
of the dol lars that are currently going in? 

If you take a look at the dol lars involved - I  do have 
that broken down here somewhere. We are not looking 
at small dol lars. I mean , if I just start at the top of the 
column:  $ 1 . 1  mil l ion, $ 1 . 1  mil l ion, $ 1 .3 mil l ion, .7 
mi l l ion, .6  mi l l ion, .7  mi l l ion . .  5 and on.  The dol lars are 
significant. Are we targeting them improperly? Are too 
many of those dol lars going perhaps into - I  will not 
even suggest where they might be going to-or should 
we turn around entirely and be addressing,  stat ing of 
this large number of programs that are not specific to 
Native people, we should be al locat ing more resources 
from there and specifically targeting them. 

M r. Downey: Madam Act i n g  Cha i rperson ,  t h at is  
basical ly what the Urban N ative Strategy and the 

development of an Urban Native Council wi l l  be deal ing 
with is to say what is currently being done,  what can 
we do to improve that, because we have seen over the 
past few years a migration of a lot of northern and 
N ative people coming to the urban setting.  What I 
believe is in the interests of society and those individuals 
is that we g ive them every opportunity to have a ful l  
and satisfactory l ife in  the urban setting because the 
e m p l oyment o pportu n i t ies in a lot  of our remote 
communities are not there. It is a matter of trying to 
e nhance those opportun ities when they move to the 
urban sett ing.  

I bel ieve some of the people with those answers are 
the leadership within the urban Native setting today, 
and we are trying to structure a mechanism so that 
we can get advice, and the development of a policy 
on an ongoing basis will be there. For me to say 
specifically today that it is being done incorrectly, the 
target is being  met or it is not, I am suspicious that 
the target is not being met today. That is why we have 
developed this process to get on with the job of working 
with the leadership to structure a strategy and a policy 
process. 

Let me say as wel l  though, it is equally i mportant­
and I appreciate the support that my co l leagues 
o pposite are giving-as we ta lk of northern people, as 
we talk of rural people, that we try to create the 
economic opportunit ies i n  those northern and rural 
settings, whether it is the Conawapa, the Bipole 3 ,  the 
Repaps ,  the reforestat i o n ,  com merc i a l  f i sh i n g ,  
traditional resource development, wild rice, that those 
e c o n o m i c  o p portu n i t ies a re prov ided i n  t h e i r  
communities. 

I personally like the l i festyle better in  a rural and 
northern community. I th ink it is more relaxing, m ore 
conducive to the raisin g  of fam i l ies and -noth ing  
against city l ife, but  I th ink  that the  temptations of 
doing certain things are in the city at t imes when they 
are not in the country or in the North .  So the No .  1 
objective is to create opportunit ies outside of the city. 
However, for those people who make the decision to 
come to Winn ipeg or to Brandon or to Portage, then 
it is our job to try to develop and make sure that policies 
and programs are there to deal with al l  people. We are 
certainly conscious of people who immigrate to th is 
country from offshore. We want to make sure there are 
train ing programs. 

* (2 1 1 0) 

I feel very strongly that the Native people of th is 
country have to be g iven every opportunity and h ave 
every right to fulfi l l  their l ives whether it be in urban 
or communities outside of the city. What in  fact we are 
dealing with this issue, I th ink the leadership of t hose 
people has to be brought together and we are bringing 
them together in  a form that can deal with issues. If 
current funding or current programs are not working 
effectively, then let us review them together and redirect 
them. 

Mr. Harper: I want to go into a different area deal ing 
with the Northern Development Agreement. I know that 
the agreements have come to an end. I would l ike to 
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know what this Minister has done in regard to continuing 
some of the programming that we have lost and what 
this Government intends to do to carry on some of the 
activities that have been funded under the Northern 
Development Agreement. I know some of the funding 
that Northern Affairs receives under the Northern 
Development Agreement will not be there. We are quite 
worried where this Government is going to get its 
revenue to fund many of the services and the 
infrastructure that is needed in many of the Northern 
Affairs communities. 

I know the Minister has indicated in this House several 
times that there are continuous negotiations for further 
continuation of these programs but we want to be 
assured that none of the benefits from the services 
that are needed in those communities are cut off. We 
are particularly concerned about the human 
development program in which many of the training 
and educational opportunities are made available to 
the northern communities. I know we have had training 
for teachers. Under the BUNTEP program, we had 
training for social workers, we had training for the 
Northern Nursing Program and such. We want to ensure 
that the communities have continuous access to this 
funding. 

I know when I was Minister we had just launched a 
review and also secured some extensions for the 
agreement. My understanding is that the agreement is 
coming to an end. What is the future for northern 
Manitoba? I would like the Minister to maybe clarify 
and indicate to this House, to our northern people, as 
to where the funding will come from and as a result 
may have lost some of the programs and maybe shed 
some light on that for us, Mr. Minister. 

Mr. Downey: The Member has opened up an extremely 
interesting and important subject, and I am pleased 
that the Minister of Education (Mr. Derkach) is here. 
I know that there will be an opportunity when it comes 
to his Estimates to elaborate to some greater extent 
in the whole area of education and training as it relates 
to our northern communities -(interjection)- You bet. 

But let me go back again, Madam Acting Chairman­
see we change Chairpersons so often that-I want to 
go back again, Madam Acting Chairperson , to the 
record of this administration as it relates to northern 
Manitoba, training, development, and do a comparison 
with what the previous administration was able to 
accomplish. Let us make it very clear that the former 
administration did not have a long-term agreement. 
The former administration was not able to put in place 
in the last year a long-term agreement with the federal 
Government. What in fact they did was get an extension 
to the current agreement that was in place. 

So, the Member cannot sit there and say that we do 
not have anything because, Madam Acting Chairperson, 
we have. We are continuing on with the program 
development, the programs as they flowed from his 
one year, final year, of extension. Education is delivering 
the BUNTEP program. There are some changes with 
some of the ACCESS program . Madam Acting 
Chairperson, to the Member. Those programs are now 
being delivered out of northern Manitoba, where they 

should be delivered out of, not out of the City of 
Winnipeg, which he had referred to or the Member for 
the Liberal Caucus referred to transportation costs. A 
lot of the money was being burned up and used up 
flying back and forth with some of the ACCESS program 
leaders. Those programs are now being delivered out 
of the North where they should be delivered, out of 
the North. 

Let us take a look at what my colleague, the Minister 
of Health (Mr. Orchard), was able to accomplish with 
the Northern Nursing Program and the signing of an 
agreement with Swampy Creek Tribal Council for some 
$1 million, a major initiative which the former Minister 
could not get put together. 

Madam Acting Chairperson , look at what my 
colleague , the Minister of Culture , Heritage and 
Recreation (Mrs. Mitchelson), and I have been able to 
do in the area of recreation, putting some $500,000, 
together with the Departments of Northern Affairs, and 
Recreation, to put in place a recreation director 
program. That is the priority area the people of the 
North have been asking for. 

I do not know what the Member previously, who he 
was talking to-he was busy running around, I guess, 
worrying about Limestone. Yes, we all wanted to see 
Limestone, and we wanted to see the development that 
came from it, but one of the problems that is being 
identified is a lot of people had a certificate or training 
degree out of the Limestone Training Program. But 
they went to get a job someplace or they went to get 
further training and they said, well, what is a certificate 
out of the Limestone Training Program? It did not have 
any affiliation with any community college certification. 
Not to downgrade it, Madam Acting Chairperson, but 
I think we have to build on the experiences of the past 
administration, the mistakes they made, and try to 
correct them. 

Look at the initiative as it relates to Repap and The 
Pas, private investment creating employment 
opportunities. What did Repap say when the Town of 
The Pas, when the chief of The Pas Indian Band said 
to Repap, what about training? Repap said here is some 
money, let us get on with the training, form a committee. 
Something like $1 million was laid on the table 
immediately, private sector money. Madam Acting 
Chairperson, we have recently announced a $5.5 billion 
Conawapa development in the northeast region, $5.5 
billion, which included in it is a Bipole development­
massive employment opportunities, training that will be 
tied to that project's specific activity. 

We are currently in discussion with the federal Minister 
who is responsible for the Native business funding. We 
are working on and, hopefully, we will be able to have 
very shortly a Memorandum of Understanding which 
will lead to a further development agreement. Yes, 
Madam Acting Chairperson, we have not been able to 
get it as quickly as maybe we should have, but let me 
tell you it is being developed aggressively. It is dealing 
with training as it relates to a specific project. 

I would hope that the whole development of an east 
side road could fall within, as it relates to environmental 
impact studies, as it relates to surveying, as it relates 
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to construction, as it relates to train ing.  Those activities 
can all be tied to train ing and development, and at the 
end of the project we have a meaningful structure. We 
h ave an  i nvestment  i n  somet h i n g  that  w i l l  make 
everyone's l i fe a l ittle b i t  better. 

Let us look at another development that the Member 
for Rupertsland (Mr. Harper) is interested in  as it relates 
to the Ind ian community of the seven communities i n  
the Island Lake area, that i s ,  a s  it relates to the hydro 
line development, again project specific which we are 
working on with the federal and provincial Governments. 
Madam Acting Chairperson,  I would th ink when you 
take the private in it iat ive, when you take the Crown 
corporat ion in i t iative, when you take the province 
in itiative, and the federal Government in it iative, we are 
going to see a tremendous amount of i nvestment and 
i nvestment opportunit ies. 

Now, dealing specifically with some of the educational 
programs, my colleague the M inister of Education (Mr. 
Derkach) has been extremely interested in developing 
and getting in  place ongoing funding for the educational 
programs. Let me assure you though that all the 
M i nisters from al l  this Government are i nterested in 
deve l o p ment  of t h e  youth a n d  the educat i o n a l  
opportunit ies. We believe i n  doing it on t h e  basis of 
long-term stabi l i ty, mak ing  sure t hose i n d iv iduals ,  
whether it be a degree i n  social work,  whether it be a 
degree in medicine, whatever it is nursing, education, 
that i t  is  something they are able to use and use in  
good stead wherever they go i n  th is  country. I t  is  the 
means of giving everyone a sound base, a base from 
which they can carry on their l ives and invest and 
participate fully i n  society. 

* (2 1 20)) 

I h ave gone a little longer than I should have i n  
answering t h i s  question.  T h e  short answer is  w e  are 
working very aggressively and hope very shortly to have 
a Memorandum of Understanding which will in  fact 
support the k inds of educational programs which wil l  
support the k ind of project specific activities that we 
are planning for the development of northern Manitoba. 

Mr. Harper: I was not only talking about the human 
development sector of the program but also the whole 
area of northern development which this Northern 
Development  A g reement covered .  We h ave these 
dollars identified that are not going to be covered under 
NOA. I notice under sector (c), Community I mprovement 
Programs and with community services for northern 
Manitoba, the amount provided for, I bel ieve, was wel l  
over $16 mi l l ion.  Under program 1 3  and P rogram 14 
were funded remote air strips for close to $5 mi l l ion;  
I believe the amount was for $4.75 mi l l ion.  But some 
of those programs will no longer be there. 

I was wonder i n g  about  t h i s  Nor thern  A ffai rs 
programming under which i t  was cost-shared 60/40, 
under which the province provided 40 percent of the 
dol lars. Where is the province going to get the money, 
the revenue? Are they going to get it from the federal 
Government to be able to provide the services? I do 
not know where the M in ister is coming from when he 
says that we are sti l l  negotiat ing, whether they be 

incl ined to fund these types of arrangements under 
schedule (a) Economic Development Programs. There 
is a C o m m u n ity Reg iona l  Economic  Deve lopment 
Program covered, and under sector (b) a whole range 
of almost $ 1 00 mi l l ion was almost expended under the 
human development program under which many of the 
programs were funded for educational opportunities 
for northern M anitobans. Certain ly, those dol lars, and 
I guess the total amount as a provincial share would 
be in  the neighbourhood of almost $ 1 00 mil l ion, I believe 
I said close to $ 1 00 mi l l ion that we provide under N OA 
a n d ,  accord i n g  to my calcu lat ions ,  that we h ave 
provided as o u r  share for N o rthern Development 
Agreement. 

I was just wondering where the money is going to 
come from, whether the Minister is gett ing any c loser, 
gett ing those dol lars to be able to provide the k ind of 
service that we are provided for under that agreement, 
whether  it is g o i n g  to be exact ly new type of 
arrangements. Either N orthern Affairs picks u p  the 
share, another one might be under Department of 
Education.  I am not quite sure how those services wil l 
be provided for. He mentioned that Repap has put on 
$ 1  mi l l ion for train ing,  but I can mention to h i m  that 
when we were in Government, we were able to secure 
a $30 m il l ion agreement with Canada Manpower to 
provide the Limestone train ing.  

Those k inds of th ings, we were able to in it iate and 
also, i n  terms of business development, we were able 
to convince Canadian General Electric to put aside $2 
mi l l ion for northern Native businesses. Those are some 
of the things that the previous Government cont inued, 
and has been continued by this Government. I certainly 
would l ike to have some assurance that the program 
activities, some of the th ings that were contained i n  
the Northern Development Agreement will continue, not 
just to say we are busy negotiat ing, and hopeful ly it 
will come about. I th ink there needs to be more of an 
assurance to northern Manitobans. I was wondering 
where this is all at, and I want to know when th is is 
coming about. Maybe the Minister would clarify that 
more to the people and to the Opposition. 

Mr. Downey: There wi l l  be no program change for this 
fiscal year. A program as it related to the Northern 
Development Agreement wil l  continue on to the end 
of this year without any change. Let me assure the 
Member, however, that he would be the first to agree-
1 would hope he would be-that when it comes to 
specific community projects, let us deal specifically with 
some of the ones that he is fami l iar with. Let us deal 
with the northeast hydro communities. They want to 
see something real. They do not want us, for the sake 
of political purposes, going aroun d  saying we have got 
$200 mi l l ion and some in  a Northern Development 
Agreement of which the federal Government pays 60 
percent and the province pays 40 percent. 

We want them to get hydro. He was the Min ister in 
Government for some six years and had not been able 
to deliver them so much as l ightning. So what we are 
doing is deal ing with the federal Government and Hydro 
to do some specific projects. When the projects are 
fin ished , we have people who have been employed in 
the development of that project, and the people in those 
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communities wi l l  appreciate the benefits. That is the 
real world .  That is our job as politicians, to make sure 
that staff del iver those things that are tangib le and 
have long-term meaning to those communities. 

We have taken over from the Department of Natural 
Resources, and there has been a lot of good work as 
it relates to the wi ld rice production areas of the 
province, tremendous opportun ities in  some of our 
communities. The Member raised specifically the airport 
program. Wel l ,  unfortunately, all the airports d id  not 
get completed under the previous admin istrat ion,  and 
there is  one airport and that is the Wasagamack airport 

'
which there is a lot of need for and a lot of pressure 
on. I have told that community, and I will tell this Member 
that it i s  our priority to get that done. If we can 
accomplish it under a new development agreement, 
we wi l l .  

I talked to the federal M inister just recently and again 
told him how anxious we were to see that community 
get an airstr ip,  so we will push for it i n  our agreement. 
I t  has to be so that we can have at the end of the day 
the people who l ive in  those communities involved in  
the  construction. The work activity, as  far as  I am 
concerned , should be carried out  by Native companies 
employing Native people, and at the end of the day 
there should be a resource infrastructure there for that 
community benefit. 

I say very seriously, probably if we were to go to the 
federal Government and say, pay 80 percent of a road 
up  the east side of Lake Winn ipeg and we will pay 20 
percent of it ,  that we would be doing al l  that region 
more good than saying we have a major $200 mi l l ion 
overal l  development agreement. I say that specifically. 

I think, Madam Acting Chairperson, it is in our interest 
to work very closely with those communit ies and I can 
assure him that the current funding under the Northern 
Development Agreement will continue to the end of 
the current fiscal year. By that t ime, when we look at 
the init iative under Repap in the northwest region, when 
we look at the in it iative under the hydro development 
in  the northeast region and the other activities which 
are taking place, we wil l ,  through the Department of 
Education which is i nvolved , the Department of I ndustry 
and Tourism, the Department of Northern Affairs, have 
some major economic in i t iat ives which are tied into 
federal G over n m e n t  f u n d i n g ,  t ied i n t o  p rovi n c i a l  
G overnment funding,  tied into private sector funding.  

* (2 1 30) 

There is a major role for the private sector to play 
in this whole development field ,  as well as Crown 
corporations. So I say, I might not be able to lay out 
in  dol lars - I  may be able to lay out greater amounts 
of dol lars than the Member was able to, but I can tel l 
you that it wi l l-and this is one of the criticisms which 
came forward from the communit ies, that there was a 
problem accessing some of the p rograms and there 
was not enough grass-roots input.  

With the greatest respect to the Member opposite, 
I th ink he tried to have grass-roots input at t imes, but 
he d id not get much co-operation from his colleagues. 
They did not l isten to him as well as they should have. 

I would  hope he looks at this objectively, and I say I 
am more anxious than anyone else to have the federal 
Government fu lly participate in a Northern Development 
Agreement. 

I would  hope by the end of this, the term of the 
current program which is in  place with the new initiatives 
coming on,  that we are not only able to see a new 
d evel opment  ag reement or Memoran d u m  of 
Understanding,  which I have referred to earlier, but wil l  
have major participation from the private sector as well .  
In my opening comments, which the Member opposite 
compl imented me on, I would hope we see the North, 
and I am sure we will see the North as the major 
opportunity for a lot of economic development. It is a 
combination of participants, and we want to make 
everyone feel comfortable in  participating-training,  
economic  opport u n i t ies,  and  i n vestment from al l  
sectors. 

Mr. Harper: Madam Acting Chairperson, I wanted to 
get a response from the M inister indicating to me and 
to the Opposition about where the province would be 
gett i n g  the i r  d o l l ars and replac ing  some of t hese 
programs which wi l l  not be continuing. 

Next year- I  mentioned before that the agreement 
wi l l  be coming to an end as of March 1 990, and I know 
the Min ister is a l ittle sensitive in terms of when I 
mentioned 60-40 and getting the federal Government 
i nvolved. I bel ieve the programs which I specifically 
mentioned under Section (a) are cost-shared with the 
provinces, but there are programs here which are 1 00 
percent federally funded. I wanted to m ake sure the 
Northern Affairs communities have programs available 
to them through the provincial Government, specifically 
u nder Section (c), Community I mprovement, in which 
a major community infrastructure was provided for, I 
believe over the years, close to $ 1 7  mi l l ion. 

I wanted to assure the Northern Affairs communities 
where the dol lars are going to be coming from in order 
to provide those k inds of programs. He mentioned the 
youth program is cost-shared, and I believe spent about 
$4 mi l l ion on Program 1 1  under human development. 
Those are the programs we are concerned about as 
the Northern Development Agreement comes to an end. 

As you know, the agreement has been in  existence 
for many years. I bel ieve we have had funding of almost 
$275 mi l l ion over the l ife of the Northern Development 
p roject. Now that is coming to an end. We need a new 
arrangement with the federal Government in terms of 
al l  the cutbacks that they are init iating and also the 
transfer payments that they are going to be withholding. 
We are very concerned in  northern Manitoba what kind 
of  fu n d i n g  we wou l d  expect from the provi nc ia l  
Government. 

I hope the M i n ister would  be able to secure some 
sort of f u n d i n g  arrangement  w i th  the federal  
Government so that al l  is not totally lost. We certain ly 
look to alternative sources of funding with the private 
sector. I hope that some of these programs will be 
replaced by the new arrangements that this Min ister 
espouses in terms of gett ing development in the North .  
I know he is sincere in  trying to meet that objective 
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but I believe he has a major task to accomplish and 
to bring i nto real ity. Certainly I wish him wel l ,  and 
certainly I would support him if I can in  any way so 
that the northern people would benefit. 

There has not been anyth ing real ly concrete that I 
can be assured of that these programs wi l l  be coming 
i n  the future, at  least i n  respect to the agreement with 
the federal Government. I know there are projects that 
he has mentioned with Repap and Conawapa and,  I 
believe, the northeast hydro l ine which is presently under 
d iscussion. Those are employment opportunities, and 
certainly we look forward to the train ing and educational 
opportunities that wi l l  be avai lable to the northern Native 
people in those areas. 

I hope he would be able to provide us with more 
concrete plans or answers so that we can be assured 
t hat we will not be losing all the programs that are 
presently being funded . I wish h im well and offer h im 
a n y  h e l p  that  I can to secure  t hose f u n d i n g  
arrangements. 

The Acting Chairman (Mrs. Yeo): Shall the item pass? 
The Honourable Member for N iakwa. 

Mr. Herold Driedger: Just another quick quest ion,  
d o  not want to spend much t ime on this.  Recently the 
federal Government has changed the NEDP, Native 
Economic  Devel opment  P l a n ,  a n d  S pecia l  A R DA 
bas ica l ly  f rom what  t h ey were to a n ew form of  
p rogramming. 

The two programs that it replaced were targeted as 
to region and they were sector specific. With the new 
program,  t h e  A b o r i g i n a l  Eco n o m i c  Deve lopment  
Program which is basically, if I can paraphrase it i n  
very short terms, first come f irst served , how is the 
province coordinating the development to fight for what 
essential ly should be Manitoban development because 
if this is one more th ing where it looks l ike it is a k ind 
of de facto federal offloading,  and I would very much 
l i ke to be able to uti l ize what is rightful ly Manitobans' 
to  d i rect it to parts of Manitoba so we again can make 
our scant resources stretch as far as possible. 

Mr. Downey: Madam Acting Chairperson,  I believe, if 
I understand the program correctly, what the federal 
Government has done is try to put in place a board 
both nationally and regionally that would reflect the 
interests of the d i fferent regions of Canada. As I 
understand it ,  that would be the main basis for which 
we would be assured of getting our fair share in  this 
province. The in it iat ive from the d i fferent communities 
I th ink is i mportant. Let us deal with some specifics. 
Again I will go back to the major projects as they relate 
to northern M anitoba, al l  of M an itoba. 

If a good project is proposed as it relates to some 
of the init iat ives that are developed u nder Conawapa, 
B ipole 3 ,  Repap, reforestat ion,  through a private sector 
i n itiative developed by the bands,  then I would expect 
the approval to take place by the federal Government 
through the board which is appointed which should 
reflect the interests of the province. 

Mr. Herold Driedger: Just to put some of this rhetoric 
into context , I do not th ink that a northern band or a 

northern ind ividual could come up with a proposal for 
C o n awapa or B i po le  3. Essent ia l ly, A E D P  is n ot 
something that is provincial in scope. These are local 
developments largely, and I th ink the dol lars are quite 
fixed . Once again ,  they are not regional specific nor 
sector specific, according to my understanding.  This 
is totally a federal program. Agai n ,  we need to do some 
kind of assistance to co-ordinate this, to d irect those 
dol lars i nto programs we provincially do not wish to 
start having to fund.  

I mean,  I bel ieve the Min ister referenced , he says it 
p r o u d l y, the fact t h at you are l o o k i n g  at access 
programs and things of that nature which are cost­
shared federal ly-provincially but, once again ,  as the 
federal Government backs out, larger and larger dollars 
have to be picked up by the provincial Government. 
This is just simply a case of we having to pick up a 
larger percentage, and that is the area where we need 
some k ind of co-ordinated attack and that is basically 
what we are asking for. 

I realize the moment one of us tests the waters or 
throws out a q uestion which may have a political spin,  
we raise the natural competitive tendencies in  this 
M inister and we are treated to a rhetorical d isplay of 
verbiage which eats up a lot of time and tends to 
provoke more questions along the same vein ,  and we 
essential ly do not proceed to where we want to get to. 

* (2 1 40) 

With that, I believe now-the Member for Rupertsland 
(Mr. Harper) will have to bear me out on this-there 
is some agreement that we will proceed through this 
department and I would l ike to engineer the process 
whereby this could  happen. 

The Acting Chairman (Mrs. Yeo): The item we have 
been debating is item 1 .(b)( 1 )  Salaries, $396,500-pass; 
1 .(b)(2) Other Expenditures, $ 1 03,200-pass; 1 .(c)( 1 )  
F i n a n c i a l  a n d  A d m i n ist rat ive Services:  Sa lar ies ,  
$425,200-pass; 1 .(c)(2) Other Expenditures, $5 1 ,500-
pass;  1 . ( d )( 1 )  Nor thern  Affai rs Fun d :  Sa lar ies,  
$6 1 ,300- pass; 1 .(d)(2) Other Expenditures, $8,000-
pass; 1 .(e)( 1 )  Communications: Salaries, $93,300-
pass; 1 .(e)(2) Other Expenditures, $37,000- pass; item 
1 . (f) C o m m u n i t ies Eco n o m i c  Deve lopment  F u n d ,  
$500,000-pass. 

I tem 2. Local  G overnment  Deve lopment ,  (a)( 1 )  
Salaries, $2 1 9 ,  1 00-the Member for Niakwa. 

M r. Herold Driedger: Just perhaps to faci l itate this, 
if you would just ask for Line No. 2 ,  the total dol lars 
on that page, and I th ink we could accomplish that. 

Mr. Harper: I would be agreeable to do that, and I 
know the Min ister oftentimes says wel l he had an 
opportunity to ask the question. I would remind h im 
that  we are trying to faci l itate his department so,  when 
we ask him questions, that he knows that. 

Mr. Downey: Madam Acting Chairperson ,  the Member 
can always count on me to be most co-operative and 
to be non-critical of passing in  the manner in which 
we are. He may not hear from me again on this particular 
issue. 
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Mr. Herold Driedger: I would just ask the Minister of 
Northern Affairs to relay his last comment in response 
to the previous speaker, the Member for Rupertsland 
(Mr. Harper), comment to his colleague, the Minister 
of Health (Mr. Orchard). Perhaps we then can facilitate 
some sort of agreement in this Chamber to proceed. 

The Acting Chairman (Mrs. Yeo): Item 2.(a)(1), 
Salaries-pass; 2.(aX2), Other Expenditures, $75,000-
pass; 2.(aX3), Community Operations, $3,937,500-
pass; 2.(a)(4), General Support Grants, $75,000-pass; 
2.(a)(5), Community Training, $100,000-pass; 2.(a)(6), 
Regional Services, $396,300-pass; 2.(a)(7), Grants, 
$851 ,500-pass. 

Item 2.(b) Thompson Region: (1) Northern 
Development Agreement-Provincial, $532,600-pass; 
2.(c) The Pas Region: ( 1) Northern Development 
Agreement-Provincial, $286,600-pass; 2.(d) Dauphin 
Region, $417,300-pass; 2.(e) Selkirk Region, 
$548,800-pass; 2.(f) Northern Development 
Agreement-Canada-Manitoba: (1) Emergency 
Response Program, $19,400-pass; 2.(f)(2), Less: 
Recoverable from Other Appropriations, $19,400-
pass; 2.(g)(1), Technical Services, Salaries, $621,300-
pass; 2.(gX2), Other Expenditures, $134,200-pass; 2.(h) 
Audit Services: (1) Salaries, $173,600-pass; 2.(h)(2), 
Other Expenditures, $27,400-pass. 

Resolution No. 118: RESOLVED that there be granted 
to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding $8,396,200 for 
Northern Affairs, Local Government Development, 
$8,396,200, for the fiscal year ending the 31st day of 
March, 1990-pass. 

Item 3.(a)(1), Agreements Management and Co­
ordination, Northern Development Agreement­
Provincial: Salaries, $169,500-pass; 3.(a)(2), Other 
Expenditures, $35,000-pass; 3.(a)(3), Payments to 
Other Implementing Jurisdictions, $410,900-pass; 
3.(b)(1), Agreements Management and Co-ordination: 
Salaries, $278,600-pass; 3.(bX2), Other Expenditures, 
$115,800-pass; 3.(bX3) Northern Flood Agreement 
$855,000-pass; 3.(c)(1) Canada-Manitoba Special 
ARDA Agreement: Salaries $61,500-pass; 3.(cX2) 
Other Expenditures $400,000-pass; 3.(d)(1) 
Development Services: Salaries $375,500-pass; 
3.(dX2) Other Expenditures $128,200-pass. 

3.(dX3) Corporate Projects $250,000-the Member 
for Niakwa. 

Mr. Herold Driedger: This is still line by line-there 
is just one small one little question I could throw into 
here dealing with corporate projects. I understand this 
is largely for Moose Channel Area Loggers and Moose 
Lake Loggers, and I noticed that when Orders-in­
Council had to be passed to increase, I guess to cover 
their operating losses due to some problems which 
they had, I noticed this was in considerable excess of 
the budget item they had last year. Now, you show just 
a small increase for next year by only something like 
$65,000.00. Does this simply reflect anticipated further 
losses and, if so, is it suffic ient do you think? I do not 
want a lengthy answer here. 

* (2150) 

Mr. Downey: The answer is yes. 

Mr. Herold Driedger: I will hold him to that. 

The Acting Chairman (Mrs. Yeo): Shall the item 
pass-pass. 

Resolution No. 119: RESOLVED that there be granted 
to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding $3,080,000 for 
Northern Affairs, Agreements Management and Co­
ordination, $3,080,000 for the fiscal year ending the 
31st day of March, 1990-pass. 

Resolution No. 120: RESOLVED that there be granted 
to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding $5,221 ,500 for 
Northern Affairs, Northern Development Agreement -
Canada-Manitoba, $5,221 ,500 for the fiscal year ending 
the 31st day of March, 1990-pass. 

5. Native Affairs Secretariat (a) Salaries $444,200-
pass; 5.(b) Other Expenditures $177,600-pass; 5.(c) 
Grants $648,000-pass; 5.(d) Aboriginal Development 
Fund $850,000-pass. 

Resolution No. 121: RESOLVED that there be granted 
to her Majesty a sum not exceeding $2, 119,800 for 
Northern Affairs, Native Affairs Secretariat, $2, 119,800 
for the fiscal year ending the 31st day of March, 1990-
pass. 

6.(a) Expenditures Related to Capital (a) Acquisition/ 
Construction of Physical Assets - Northern Development 
Agreement - Canada-Manitoba: (1) Northern Affairs, 
$1,209,400-pass; 6.(a)(2) Other Departments, 
$258,000-pass; 6.(b)(1) Acquisition/Construction of 
Physical Assets: Other Capital Projects, $1,517,800-
pass; 6.(b)(2) Community Access and Resource Roads, 
$435,000-pass. 

Resolution No.122: RESOLVED that there be granted 
to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding $3,420,200 for 
Northern Affairs, Expenditures Related to Capital 
$3,420,200 for the fiscal year ending the 31st day of 
March, 1990-pass. 

Before reverting to the Minister's Salary, I would invite 
the Minister's staff to leave. Thank you. The Member 
for Niakwa. 

Mr. Herold Driedger: Very quickly, before the staff 
actually leaves, I wish to thank them for their patience 
while we went through this exercise, and appreciate 
the help that they were able to give to the Minister, so 
he was able to put those answers onto the record that 
he actually did do. 

The Acting Chairman (Mrs. Yeo): The item we will 
be dealing with is 1.(a) Minister's Salary, $20,600-the 
Member for Rupertsland. 

Mr. Harper: I just want to indicate to the Minister that 
we will be watching his department and also his policies 
as to what is happening in the North. Certainly we want 
to co-operate any way that we can, and also we will 
be criticizing him any way that we see fit if he is not 
living up to his policies and the direction that he will 
be providing for northern Manitobans. 

Certainly the aboriginal people in Manitoba will be 
looking toward this Government for support, and 
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certainly wi l l  need a lot of help in many areas. I hope 
that we wil l  be able to achieve many of the outstand ing 
issues that we need to work on .  I wou ld  just conclude 
by saying that I wi l l  be wil l ing to co-operate with this 
Minister i n  doing what I can , and also be wi l l ing to 
criticize him if I feel that he is not living up to the 
responsib i l ities, or holding up to his portfol io .  With that, 
I woul d  wish him well i n  h is  portfol io and look forward 
to working with h im.  

Mr. Herold Driedger: J ust a very few remarks to d raw 
this to a conclusion,  we real ize that the Min ister of 
Northern Affairs (Mr. Downey) is not responsible for 
everything that happens for the N orth and for Native 
people in Manitoba. As he referenced, there is a Minister 
of Education ( M r. Derkach) and the M in ister of Health 
( M r. Orchard)  and m a n y  other  d epartments of 
Government, some of which we can ask much more 
pointed questions to because they actually have the 
dol lars that can be d irected to the department or 
cannot. 

I just wish to put it on record that we reserve for us 
the r ight to question when, where and how, and basically 

recogn ize that much of what we did here is subject to 
the fact that we are l imited by t ime. The M i nister as 
wel l  is aware of that, and as long as he recogn izes that 
we recogn ize that as wel l .  We work together for the 
people of Manitoba for this particular benefit. 

* (2200) 

The Acting Chairman (Mrs. Yeo): Item 1 .(a) M i nister's 
Salary, $20,600- pass. 

Resolution No. 1 1 7 :  RESOLVED that there be granted 
to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding $ 1 ,696,600 for 
Northern Affairs, Administration and Finance, for the 
fiscal year end ing the 3 1 st day of March, 1 990- pass. 

Committee rise. Call in the Speaker. 

IN SESSION 

The Acting Speaker (Mrs. Yeo): The House wi l l  come 
to order. The hour being after 10 p .m. ,  this House is 
ad journed and stan d s  ad jou rned u n t i l  1 :30 p . m .  
tomorrow (Tuesday). 
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